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Explanatory Foreword 

Introduction 

Belfast City Council WIIS the largest of the 2S District Councils In Northern Ireland. The Councll had 51 eleeted Councillors representJng n ne electoral areas across Belfast 
with a total population as per the 2013 census ot 281,735. The Council Will, by any definition, an O"Janisation of size,lmpor1ance and stature and In particular was 
responsible ror the delivery ot key services such as those relating to Refuse Collection and Disposal, Street Cleansing, the provls'on of Indoor and outdoor Leisure and 
Recreational Facilities, Community S81VIces and Importantly, In the expanding and high profile area ot Health and Environmental Services. 

Local Govammant Rafonn 

From 1 April 2015, under the Reform of Local Govemment (RLG), the number of Councils m Northam Ireland reduced from the 2S existing to 11 new Counclls, established 
under the Local Govemment Aet (North em Ireland) 1972 as amended by the Local Govemment (Boundaries) Aet (Northam Ireland) 2008. From that date the Northam 
Ireland Executive has agreed to transfer soma functions cumsnUy carried out by Nl Govemment Departments and give some new responsibilities to the 11 new Councils 
The new councils will be stronger, more efficient and will deliver more effective services. 

The new councils came into existence on 26111 May 2014, operating in shadow form until they took over futJ responsibility for local govemment on 1" April 2015 when the 26 
existing councils ceased to exist The final accounts for Belfast City Council will therefore be for the 2014/15 financial year. The Local Govemment (Transitional, 
Supplementary, Incidental Previsions and Modifications) Regulations (Northam Ireland) 2014 made transitiona1 prevision with respect to local govemment reo11Jan·satlon 
Including positions of responsibility within the new counch for the winding up and final accounts of existing councl's. 

The Local Govemment Aet (Northam Ireland) 2014 introduced the legislative framework ror Northam Ireland's 11 new councils and made transltiona' provisions to prcvlde for 
the transfer of staff, assets and liabilities from the cummt 2S counc'ls to the 11 new counCils, and from departments transferring functions to the new counci!'s. 

Leisure Trenafonnatlon Prognmme 

The Council's Leisure Transformation Programme received final approval In May 2014 for the Introduction of a new leisure trust model which led to the establishment of 
Active Belfllst Limited. Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL), a charitable soc' a I enterprise, Will appointed as a strategic operating partner to manage the leisure faC:Iities and Its 
operations from 1 January 2015 by Active Belfast Limited and the Counc I, as a tripartite agreement GLL' s four strateg c po~lars of 'Better Service, Better Communities, 
Better People and Better Business' are the heart of what GL.L wiO achieve and de' ver In Belfast GLL"s ethos aligns slrltegically with the CounCil's corporate plan and the 
city's emerging community plan- The Belfast Agenda. GLI. is woridng towards the de'ivery of annual operational savings to be re'nvested back to the leisure estate and 
community. 

Cu~ntYearPe~onnance 

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2015 1s set out In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and It's financial position Is set 
out in the Balance ShHt and Cash Flow Statement 

These financial statements have been prepared in Lne with the Code of Practice on Local Authority AccounUng In the United Kingdom 2014/15 (the Code) and the 
Department of the Environment Accounts Direction. Circular LG 12115 dated 31 March 2015. It Is the purpose of this foreword to expla n, in an easily understandable way the 
financial facts in relation to the Council. 

This Statament of Accounts explains Belfast City Counci's finances during the financial year 2014115 and i ts financial position at the end ot that year. It follows approved 
accounting standards and Is necessartty technical In parts 

Group Accounts 

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider an their interests and to prepare a full set of group nnanclal statements where they have material interests In subsld'aries, 
associates or joint ventures. Belfast City Council does not have material Interests In such bod'es and accorclingly Is not required to prepare group financial statements. 

The Movement In Reserves Statement 

This Statement, as set out on page 21, shows the movement In the year on the d fferent reserves held by the Council, analysed Into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be 
applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The 'Surplus or (deficit) on the prevision of services' Una shows the true economic cost of providing 
the Council's services, more details of which are shown In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement These are different from the statutory amounts required 
to be cha"Jed to the General Fund Balance for Local Tax purposes, The 'Net increase /Decrease before transfers to statutory and other reserves' line shows the statutory 
General Fund Balanca befora any discretionary transfers to or from statutory and other reserves undertaken by the Councl. 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This statement, as set out on page 22, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing servlc:es In accordance with generally eccapted accounting prectices, rather than 
the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; th's may be different from the accounting cost The 
taxation position is shown In the Movement in Reserves Statement 



The Balance Sheet 

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 23, shows the value as at the Ba'anee Sheet date of the Council's assets and llablliUes The net assets of the Council (assets less 
liabilities) are matched by the reserves h~d by the Council. Reserves are reported In two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, I e. those reserves 
that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital 
Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capita1 expenditure or repay debt). The seeond category of reserves are those that the authority Is not able to use to provide 
services. This category of reserves Includes reserves that hold unreatsed ga:ns and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become 
available to provide services If the assets are sold; and reserves that ho'd tim'ng differences shown In the Movement In Reserves Statement rna 'Ad;ustments between 
accounting besis and funding basis under regUlallons'. 

The Caah Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes In cash and cash aqulvatents of the Council during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and 
uses cash and cash equivalents by c'assifylng cash flows as operating, Investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities Is a 
key Indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant Income or from the reeiplents of services provided by the Council. 
Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash 
flows arising from financlng activities are useful In predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capita! (l.e borrowing) to the CounciL 

Financial Report 

For the year ended 31 March 2015 the Cound increased Its General Fund reserve by £2.085k to £22.028k and the reserve represents on average 12.1'11. of annual gross 
expendltunt. The Council's budget of £134,346k was supplemented by £4.70Sk for prior year fine' lsation payment of district rates. The total net Income reported In the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Is £15,21 Ok and thereafter allocations of £7,0431t to fund capital expenditure. 

The following gives a comparison between the budgeted and actual net cost for the Council for the year to March 2015 

Actual Estimate Variance 

Nat Cost 140,334.605 134,346,474 5,988131 

Income: 
Generel Grant 4,629,062 4,630,116 (1 ,054) 
District Rates 134 538 548 129 716 358 4 820 190 
Surplus/(Deflcltl 111681995 0 j1,168,995l 

During the year the Council repaid external !oans of £n9,174. At 31 March 2015 the total amount outstand ng on axtamalloans was £23,158,244 Of this total £6,434,700 
(or 28%) represents the outstanding debt of the lormer Belfast Corporation Services which Is now the responsibility of the the North em Ireland Housing Executive, and on 
whose behalf the Council Is administering the loans. 

The capital expenditure of the Council can be financed using: 
Loans, 
Grants, 
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets; 
Capital Funds and 
Revenue Contributions directly from the Oistrclt Fund 

Expenditure on capital projects during the year amounted to £25 5m, the most signifC8f1t spend was on Belfast Waterfront Exhibition and Conference Centre £6,342k, 
Girdwood Hub £4,667k and Connswater Community Greenway £3,038k. 

The Council participates in the Nor1!1em Ireland Local Govemmant Off.cars' Pension Fund administered by the Northam Ireland Local Government Officers' Superannuation 
Committee. Transactions relating to retirement benefits are Included In Note 19 to these Statement of Accounts, 

The Gas Pension Fund Accounts Included on pages 86 to 87 are not consolidated with'n the Council Balance Sheel 

The Council does not, at present, have any commitments to finance capital expend-ture by way of Private Finance Initiative or Public Privata Par1nership Schemes 

This foreword provides an explanation of the financlal aspects of the Council s activ ties and draws attention to the main charectarlstlcs of the Council's finanelal posltlon. 
Further Information about the accounts can be obtalned from: 

MrR Cregan 
Director of Finance and Performance 
Belfast City Council 
City Hall 
Belfast 
BT15GS 

Telephone Number 
(028) 9050 0532 
Facsimile Number 
(028) 9072 8416 
E-mail address 
ctJQanal!tbelfastclty.gov.uk 



Statement of the Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

The CouncH'a Ruponslbllltles 

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Anance Act (Nortllem Ireland) 2011 a eou~il shall make al'l"8ngeellttlts for the proper administration of Its financial affairs. A 
cor.mcfl 11*1 deslgru~te an ollicer of the council as its chief fina~ial offiCer and these arrangements shall be carried out under the supervision of its chlef financial offiCer. 

Under Regulation 5 of the Local Govemment (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northam ireland) 2006 the Council, or a Committee, ls requ red by resolution to approve the 
accounts. 

These accounts were approved by the Streteg·c Policy and Resources Committae on 19 June 2015. 

The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities 

Under Regulation 4(1) of the Local Govemment (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northam Ireland) 2006, the Chief Anancial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the 
Council's Statement of Accounts in the form directed by the Department of the Environment 

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financia position as at the end of the finanelel year. 

In preparing tills Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial offiCer Is required to: 

• 

• 

• 

observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department of the Environment Including compliance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom; 

follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting po· cies on a consistent basis, and; 

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable end prudent 

The Chief Financial Officer is also requ red to. 

• keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date, and; 

• take reasonab'e steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other Irregularities . 



Annual Governance Statement 2014/2015 

The Council's Annual Governance Statement (AGS) follows the guidance issued by DOE Local 

Government Division in 2008, DOE accounts directions and where applicable, the factsheet 

on governance statements issued by the NIAO in 2013, and comprises the following sections: 

• Scope of responsibility 

• The purpose of the governance framework 

• The governance framework 

• Review of effectiveness 

• Significant governance issues 

Scope of Responsibility 

Belfast City Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 

with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a 

duty under the Local Government (Best Value) Act (Northern Ireland) 2002 to make 

arrangements for continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, 

having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 

arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its 

functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement which is consistent with the 

principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Loco/ 

Government. This statement explains how the Council has complied with the code and also 

meets the requirements of the Local Government Accounts and Audit (Amendment) 

Regulations {Northern Ireland 2006) in relation to the publication of a statement on internal 

control. 
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The Purpose of the Governance Framework 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by 

which the Council is directed and controlled and the activities through which it accounts to, 

engages with and leads its communities. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement 

of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery 

of appropriate services and value for money. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 

manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, 

aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 

of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 

identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and 

objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should 

they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

The governance framework has been in place at Belfast City Council for the year ending 31 

March 2015. From 1 April 2015 to the date of approval of the Annual Governance 

Statement and statement of accounts, the governance arrangements are those of the new 

Belfast City Council. The following section sets out the key elements of the Councils 

governance framework. 

The Governance Framework 

This section of the Annual Governance Statement provides a brief description of the key 

elements of the governance framework the Council has in place. 

To prepare for reform, each of the new 11 district council areas was required to establish a 

statutory transition committee. The Belfast Statutory Transition Committee was operational 

from December 2013 and was responsible for providing political leadership and direction in 

preparations for the new Belfast Council. Following the local government elections on 22 

May 2014, the Statutory Transition Committee was replaced by the New Belfast District 

Council - referred to internally as the shadow Council on 19 June 2014. The New Council 

was made up of 60 elected members, an Increase of nine from the previous 51 members, to 
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reflect the extended council boundary area. A dual council operated until 31 March 2015. 

The Council of 51 members continued to oversee the day to day running of the council until 

1 April 2015. The New Council of 60 elected members prepared our organisation for our 

new roles and responsibilities, ensuring we are ready to continue service delivery on day one 

of the new council. 

Council continued to operate under the departmental committee structure as illustrated 

below. 

~ 

Council 

I 

Strategic Poli!=Y-
and Resources 

Committee 

' 
-, I ._ _ _!_ 

Health apd 
Development Town ftannina Environmental Ucenslng Parks &.leisure 
Committee COmmitt" Senilces Committee Committee 

Committee 

Whereas the New Council's purpose was to prepare for reform and so their committee 

structure reflected the purpose of their work, as illustrated and described below. 

Shadow Strategic 
Policy and 
Resources 
Committee 

Transition 
Committee 

·Transformation 
~··· . .· ··-.: 

<;ommlttee 

Shad9w Planning 
Committee 

The Shadow Strategic Policy and Resources Committee made decisions or recommendations 

in relation to: budgets; post 2015 governance arrangements; organisational development 

and design; and corporate planning and performance processes. In addition the Council was 
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required to comply with expenditure controls by seeking the consent of the New Council for 

material decisions regarding disposal of land, capital expenditure and revenue expenditure. 

Any projects that ran into the new council term of 1 April 2015 and beyond were considered 

by the New Council as well as the Council. 

In addition to the Committees listed in the diagrams above there are a number of Working 

Groups established which include the Audit Panel, Budget and Transformation Panel and a 

number of Area Working Groups. 

The Audit Panel provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council's risk 

management framework and associated control environment. It provides an independent 

scrutiny of the Council's financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it 

exposes it to risk and weakens the control environment. The Audit Panel met six times 

during 2014/15. The Audit Panel was reconstituted for the new council from 1 April 2015, 

and renamed the Audit and Risk Panel. 

The Council's Code of Governance is based on the six core principles set out in the 

CIPFA/SOLACE Framework. How we meet these six core principles is reviewed and updated 

annually and a summary of the key elements of our governance framework are set out in the 

following table: 

Focus on purpose and outcomes 
. - . . . - . '. 

We will do this through the following: 
• Community plann.ing, the Belfast Conversation and the Belfast Agenda 

• Belfast City Centre Regeneration Strategy and Investment Plan 
• Local Development Plan 
• 'One Council' corporate communication guidelines 
• Regular surveys for public, officers and members 

• Corporate complaints, comments and compliments procedure 
• Corporate and departmental planning process 
• Leisure transformation programme 
• Investment programme 

• Performance management system 
• Annual financial report 

• Integrated financial planning 
• Strategic financial management framework 

• Efficiency programme and value for money work 
• Procurement policies, procedures and guidelines 
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We will do this through the following: 

• Our corporate values 
• Consultation and engagement work 
• Council constitution 
• Council Standing Orders 
• Scheme of Delegation 
• Financial regulations 
• Committee structure and protocols 
• Committee reporting system 
• Party Group briefings 
• Members remuneration scheme 
• Job descriptions 
• Terms and conditions of employment 

Promoting values of good governance 

Vf,e. will dffthis: througltthef"oiiowing: 
• Our corporate values 

• Sti;ln'Ciing oraers 
• finanCial regulations 

• Good relations plan 
• _Equality scheme and action plan 
• (;)isaoility strategy and action plans 

• Lesbian, Gay, Bisex.ual and Transgender AQ:ion Plan 
• Race Action Plan 

• Sus~ainaole develoP.ment ~ction plan 
• Gades of condu.ct f or members·and officers 

• ApP.ral sall ramework 
• Fra.ud and corruption am! whistle blowing policies 
• · Declarations· of; interests is a stan·ding agenda item for ~bmTjlittees and· wgfkin_g· 

groups. 
i Regl~r QfMemb~rs •Declatations -and Gifts ana Rg~pit!! lirt Register: 
• Policy and guidance for officers on gifts and hospitality and conflicts of interest 

• P~v~9t:!m~nt of DPA I f01 P.OIIgr: frame.work 

T.aking informed, transparent decisions and managing risk 

• ·co.rilmu{lity planning_ and the. Belfast Agenda 

• Local bevelopmen~.Plan 
• Council G:onstitution 
• Standing orders 
• Scheme,of.delegation 

• -~omfnittee !!tructure and·prptocols 
• Gommittee. reporting system 

• 0nline min)Jt~s ~ysfem· (modern.gov) 

• Performance management system 

• Auefit and.B,isk Panel with an extern~! indep~ndent m~ber 
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• lnternal.audit service 
• Risk managem~nt framework 

• Quarterly Assurance Statements 
• Development of Health and Safety Assurance Framework 
• Budgetary·control·and reporting framework· 
• 'Financial Regulations and• accounting manual 
• Business continuity management policy 

.__--=-·-· Town Solicitor and legal Services 

Developing capacity and capability 

We will do this through the following: 

-- - -

• Member development programme (we became the first local authority to be 
awarded the Northern Ireland Charter for elected member development) 

• Organisational development programme 
• Personal development planning 
• learning and development policy 
• Appraisal framework 

• Development of the Belfast Manager profile 
• Investors in people award 
• Performance management system 
• Recruitment and selection procedures 
• Corporate induction courses 

- - • • a.. ' •: ~ ~ .... r .. y, ' ......... .J • • • • ..._, ; .. -

Community engagement and making accountability real . . : · · 
"'.:~··"'-'J4' .. ,. ...... · __ ,_ ..... ~ ..... : ............ --.£.. · .... "'::-...:,!.&.. -- .....:.:. - . - .. 

We will do this through the following: 
• The Belfast Conversation 

• Community planning and the Belfast Agenda 
• local Development Plan 
• Consultation and engagement work 
• Communication of corporate plan, capital programme and financial report 
• Open council and committee meetings and live webcasts 
• Online minutes system (Modern.gov) 

• Our website and use of social media 
• 'My Belfast' app 
• Regular surveys for public, officers and members 
• Corporate complaints, comments and compliments process 

• City Matters magazine 
• Performance management system 

• Negotiation and discussion with trade unions 
• Creation of advisory member area working groups 

The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources is the Council's 

designated Chief Financial Officer under the Local Government Finance Act (Northern 

Ireland) 2011, responsible for the proper administration of the Council's financial affairs. 
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The Council's financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements 

of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010} 

as set out in the Application Note to Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 

Framework. 

The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2010) sets out the five 

principles that define the core activities and behaviours that belong to the role of the Head 

of Internal Audit (HIA) in public service organisations and the organisational arrangements 

neededtosupportthem. 

The Head of AGRS, and the supporting operational arrangements in place, conform to the 5 

principles set out in the CIPFA Statement. This is demonstrated ttirough a self-assessment 

exercise undertaken by AGRS. While the principles state that the HIA should not be 

responsible for preparing the annual governance report, the arrangements within BCC 

Involve AGRS co-ordinating the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement which is 

then reviewed and approved by the Corporate Management Team, Assurance Board, Audit 

and Risk Panel before being signed by the Chair of Strategic Policy & Resources, the Chief 

Executive and the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources. 

Review of Effectiveness 

The following diagram illustrates the Assurance Framework in place that provides 

information on compliance with the various elements of the Council's Governance 

Framework, including performance reports, health and safety reports, finance reports, 

internal audit reports and risk management reports. 
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Provision of assurance on adequacy and effectiveness ofcontrols over key risks 
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The various in year and year end reports arising from the Assurance Framework are 

reviewed and approved by the Audit and Risk Panel and Strategic Policy and Resources 

Committee annually. 

In addition, the review of the effectiveness of the Governance Framework is also informed 

by: 

• the annual review and update of the Code of Governance; 

• comments or recommendations made by the external auditors during their annual 

audit; and 

• the Head of Audit Governance and Risk Services (AGRS) annual assurance statement 

for the period ending 2014115, which gives an opinion on the Council's risk and 

control environment. 

The Head of Audit, Governance and Risk Services (AGRS), on the basis of work carried out, 

provided a reasonable assurance regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's 

framework of governance, risk management and control. This opinion was based on the 

following: 

• evidence from audit work that the Council's key corporate risks have been identified, 

assessed and are being actively managed 

• evidence from audit work that, in the case of the majority of functional areas I 

systems subject to detailed internal audit during 2014115, AGRS has been able to 

provide a positive statement of assurance 

• the evidence set out in the review of the Council's Code of Governance and Annual 

Governance Statement regarding the range of key assurance and governance 

arrangements that the Council has in place to direct I oversee its activities. In 

particular, audit work during 2014115 has confirmed that appropriate governance 

arrangements to meet the requirement of the Local Government Act 2014 have 

been put in place. 
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Some weaknesses and areas for improvement were identified through our audit work. 

These have been reported in detail to the Council's Assurance Board and Audit Panel during 

2014115. The Head of AGRS highlighted the following key issues: 

• AGRS was unable to provide a positive statement of assurance for the internal audit 

of the capital programme. Management has established a project to review this 

area and implement improvements. 

• while it is understandable that the focus of management in the last year has been on 

local government reform, the level of outstanding audit actions I recommendations 

remains high, albeit that a number of recommendations are in the process of being 

implemented. The outstanding issues will be discussed further with Directors in the 

context of the priorities of the new Council. AGRS will continue to monitor and 

report to the Audit and Risk Panel on the progress being made to implement 

outstanding actions during 2015116. 

• audit and investigation work has identified areas where enabling (internal) policies 

and related procedures I processes, need more effective 'custodianship' i.e. clear 

roles and responsibilities and arrangements to ensure that they are regularly 

reviewed, managed and monitored. 

• while it has improved in recent years, there is a degree of inconsistency in the 

quality of the risk management process across the council. It has been used 

effectively to help manage local government reform related risks and the Corporate 

Management Team has regularly reviewed the key corporate risks during 2014115. 

However, our review of the management of key risks has identified areas where 

further action is required to reduce risk exposure. We have also identified non­

compliance issues with the timely completion of the quarterly risk reviews and the 

application of the process to 'business as usual' risks. 

The Head of AGRS has raised the latter two issues with the Deputy Chief Executive and 

Director of Finance and Resources who has indicated that these issues are to be addressed 

during 2015116 through the emerging performance accountability framework and ongoing 

Organisational Development work. 
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Continued effort has been put into developing and implementing the key elements of an 

assurance framework within Belfast City Council with the key elements being: 

• a process whereby senior managers are required to sign annual assurance statements; 

• a process whereby Directors are required to sign quarterly assurance statements; 

• ·embedding risk management; 

• embedding the action tracking process; 

• business planning and related performance reporting arrangements; 

• an Audit and Risk Panel; 

• a professional internal audit function; and 

• a Health & Safety Assurance Board. 

Significant Governance Issues 

As a result of local Government Reform and related legislation, the old Belfast City Council 

ceased to operate on 31 March 2015. From 1 April 2015 the new Council was responsible 

for providing services to the extended council boundary area and delivering new functions 

transferred from central government along with new powers and responsibilities. 

After careful consideration we did not identify any significant governance issues associated 

with the day to day running of the old Belfast city Council in 2014/15. 

During 2014/15 a new corporate risk relating to the future operating model for the 

Waterfront was identified. This issue along with other issues that are long-term and 

strategic in nature are appropriately disclosed in the Annual Governance Statement of the 

new Council, which is responsible for the future management of these issues. 

A brief description of the issues facing the new Council is detailed below. For further detail 

please refer to the Annual Governance Statement for the new Council. 

1. local Government Reform- this relates to meeting the challenges and maximising the 

benefits presented by lGR (phase 2) 

2. Belfast Agenda - this relates to meeting our new statutory responsibilities with 

regards to community planning 
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3. Organisational Development- this relates to the need for the new Council to realign 

the organisation to ensure it is fit to deliver the new priorities 

4. Medium Term Financial Plan- this relates to the need to take account of the income 

and expenditure risks in the medium term 

5. European Regional Development Fund- this relates to the potential financial 

consequences associated with extended delivery dates and compliance issues in 

relation to major capital projects 

6. Waterfront Hall Operating Model- this relates to the need to meet strategic 

economic objectives for the Waterfront 

7. Management of leisure contract and capital investment- this relates to management 

of the leisure contract between the Council, Active Belfast Limited and Greenwich 

leisure Limited to ensure that key outcomes are achieved. 

8. Information Management- this relates to the need to ensure that the organisation 

has effective systems and procedures in place for information management 

9. Robinson Centre- this relates to the closure of the centre. 

Local Government Reform 

From 1 April 2015, under the Reform of local Government (RLG), the number of Councils in 

Northern Ireland reduced from the 26 existing to 11 new Councils, established under the 

Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 1972 as amended by the Local Government 

(Boundaries) Act (Northern Ireland) 2008. From that date the Northern Ireland Executive 

transferred some functions that had been carried out by Nl Government Departments and 

gave some new responsibilities to the 11 new Councils. The new councils will be stronger, 

more efficient and will deliver more effective services. 

The new councils came into existence on 26th May 2014, operating in shadow form until 

they take over full responsibility for local government on 1st April2015 when the 26 existing 

councils cease to exist. The final accounts for Belfast City Council are therefore for the 

2014/15 financial year. The local Government (Transitional, Supplementary, Incidental 

Provisions and Modifications) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 made transitional 

provision with respect to local government reorganisation including positions of 

responsibility within the new council for the winding up and final accounts of existing 

councils. 
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The Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 introduced the legislative frame work for 

Northern Ireland's 11 new councils and has made transitional provisions to provide for the 

transfer of staff, assets and liabilities from the current 26 councils to the 11 new councils, 

and from departments transferring functions to the new councils. 

As a result of Local Government Reform and related legislation, the old Belfast City Council 

ceased to operate on 31 March 2015. The Director of Finance and Resources is responsible 

for ensuring that the final financial statements of the old Council were produced in 

accordance with relevant Accounts Directives. All the assets I liabilities pertaining to the 

'old' council have transferred to the 'new' council. 

Signed: ...... ~~~~~~~ ...•......•..•.......................••............•..•. 

Chair Strategic Policy and sources Committee 

Chief Executive Officer 

Signed: ••• R..~.C.+···:·····················-················-········ 
Chief Financial Officer 
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer 

I certify that 

(a) 

(b) 

the Statement of Accounts lor the year ended 31 March 2015 on pages 21 to 87 has been prepared In the form directed by the 
Department of the Environment and under the accounting po cies set out on pages 25 to 36. 

In my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and lair v'ew or the income and expenditure and eash nows for the ~nanclal year 
and the financial position as at the end of the financial year ending 31 March 2015. 

i.:...G..~--~ ......... _, ....... _ 
Chl.t Flnanctaf'Offlc•r 

... J.t:l~.~tu-::.. ............... . 
Date 

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts 

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee on 19 June 2015 and subject to the amendments set out on page 88 . 

..... LC?. . .l..t.Q .. .Jr.~ ........ .. 
Date 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 

I have audited the financial statements of Belfast City Council for the year ended 31 March 2015 
under the Local Government (Northern Ireland} Order 2005. The financial statements comprise the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance 
Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes. The financial statements have been prepared 
under the accounting policies set out within them. 

This report is made solely to the Members of Belfast City Council in accordance with the Local 
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in the Statement 
of Responsibilities. Under the transitional arrangements set out in the Local Government 
(Transitional, Supplementary, Incidental Provisions and Modifications) Regulations Northern Ireland} 
2014, the new Belfast City Council takes responsibility for the financial statements of the old Belfast 
City Council. 

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and the independent auditor 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities, 
the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the 
financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year. My responsibility is to 
audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 
2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice. I conducted my audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require me and my staff to 
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the 
accounting policies are appropriate to the Belfast City Council's circumstances and have been 
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by the Belfast City Council; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
In addition I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts to 
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any 
information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the 
knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If I become aware of any apparent 
material misstatements or inconsistencies I consider the implications for my report. 

Opinion on financial statements 

In my opinion: 

• the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and 
statutory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2014-15, of the financial position of Belfast City Council as at 31 March 
2015 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 

• the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local 
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland} 2006 and the 
Department of the Environment directions issued thereunder. 



Opinion on other matters 

• In my opinion the information given in the Explanatory Foreword for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2015 is consistent with the financial statements. 

Matters on which I report by exception 

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which I report to you if, in my opinion: 

• The Annual Governance Statement: 

o does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15; 

o does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department of the 
Environment; 

o is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my 
audit; or 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

• the statement of accounts is not in agreement with the accounting records; or 

• I have not received all of the information and explanations I require for my audit. 

Certificate 

I certify that I have completed the audit of accounts of Belfast City Council in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government 
Code of Audit Practice. 

L 
Louise Mason 
Local Government Auditor 
Northern Ireland Audit Office 
106 University Street 
Belfast 
BT71EU 

w October 2015 



Belfast City Counc:U 
Movement In Reserves Statement 
For the cUITiflt and comparative year 

This Statement shoWs the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into 'usable reserves' (I e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The 'Surplus or 
(Dellc:it) on the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory 
amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balaoc:e for local tax purposes. The 'Net increase /Decrease before transfe" to statutory and other reserves' line shoWs the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary 
transre, to or from statutory and other reserves undertaken by the Council. 

General Fund Statutory ReseNes Otheffund capital Receipts Total Usable Total Unusable Total Council 
Summa!y Balances& Reserve Reserves Reserves Reserves 

Reserves 
£ £ £ £ £ £ E 

At 1 April 2013 20,614,051 17,979,319 7,395,483 961,790 46,950,643 313,367,941 360,318,584 

Movement In reserves during the year 

Surplus or (defiCit) on the provislon of services (4,707,813) 0 0 0 (4,707,813) 0 (4,707,813) 

OCher Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 50,295,897 50,295,897 
Total Compnthe11111Ye Income and Expenditure (4,707,813) 0 0 0 (4,707,813) 50,295,897 45,588,084 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations 10,739,926 0 0 (58,725) 10,683,201 (12,307,294) (1,624,093) 

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Statutory and Other Reserves 6,032,113 0 0 156,725) 5,975,388 37,988,603 43,963,991 

Other movements 1596,752) (583,579) 1,049,611 38,000 (92,720) (92,720) 

Transfers to/from Statutory and Other Reserves (6, 106,897) 6007,000 106,897 0 7,000 0 7,000 
lncreaseiDec:rease In Year (671,536) 5,423,421 1,156,508 (18,725) 5,889,668 37,988,603 43,878,271 

At 31 March 2014 19,942,515 23,402,740 8,551,991 943,065 52,840,311 351,356,544 404,196,855 

Opening balance adjustment 916,095 (8,031,207) (7,115,112) 8,031,207 916,095 

Movement in reserves during the year 

Surplus or (derldt) on provision or services 15,209,705 0 0 0 15,209,705 0 15,209,705 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 9,467,654 9,467,654 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 15,209,705 0 0 0 15,209,705 9,467,654 24,&n,359 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations (13,002,664) 0 0 (46,350) (13,049,014) 10,284 883 (2,764, 131) 

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Statutory and Other Reserves 2,207,041 0 0 146,350) 2,160,691 19,752,537 21,913,228 

Other movements 0 1118,1891 0 346,350 228,161 228,161 

Transfers to/from Statutory and Other Reserves (1 ,038,046) 4,304,532 (517,886) 0 2,748,600 0 2,748,600 

tncreaseiDec:rease In Year 1,168,995 4,186,343 (517,886) 300,000 5,137,452 19,752,537 24,889,989 

Al31 March 2015 22,027,605 27,589,083 2,898 1,243,065 50,862,651 379,140,288 430,002,939 
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Belfast City Council 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2015 

This statement shows the accounting cost In the year of provid"ng serv·ces In accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. rather than the amount to be 
funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be d;fferent from the accounting cost The taxation posrt on ls 
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement 

2014116 2013/14 
Notes Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net 

Expenditure Income Cost Expenditure Income Cost 

£ £ £ £ £ £ 
Services Expenditure 
Leisure and Recreational Services 70,901,0 17 12,50t,068 H,39li,U1 76,331.167 15,059 548 11,271,811 

Environmental Services 67,654,663 12,717,786 54,938,877 68,373,51!5 11,585.00 51,788,521 

DRM and Corporate Management 19,523,.ca2 2,995.600 18,527,882 t6,914 858 3,658.237 13,251,821 

Other Services 23,844,639 7,535,045 16,309,5!14 21,853,999 7,058.317 14,785,112 
Cost of Services on Continuing Operations 2a 1 Bt ,923,801 35,749.497 148,174,304 183.473 589 37,361,14!1 141, 112.«3 

Other Operating Expenditure 7 0 15,5!14 (15,514) II 8,110 (1,110) 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure B 5,t64,718 14,266,490 (9,101,7741 7,417,474 6,816,737 800,737 

Surplus or Deficit on Discontinued Operations 0 0 0 c 0 0 

Net Operating Elcpenditure 187,088,517 50,031,551 137,058,951 190.891,063 44,183.993 148,707,070 

Taxation and Non-Speclnc Grant Income 9 0 ~52.266,671 (152,2&6,671) 0 141,999 257 (141,919,257) 

Surplus/(Oeflclt) on the Provision of Services 18 7.088,517 202,298,222 15,201,705 190,891.083 1110,183250 (4,707,113} 

Surplus/( Deficit) on revaluation of non-current assets 10a/10b/10d 22 791,654 15,536,109 

Impairment losses on non-current assets charged to the 
Revaluation Reserve 10a/10b/10d 0 (744.212) 

Surplusi(Oefieit) arising on revaluation of available-for-sale 
financial assets 

25a/25b 0 0 

Remeesurements of the Net Defined Benefit Uability 
(Asset) 19 (13,324,000) 35,504,000 

other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1,467,154 10,291,197 

Total Comprehenalve Income and Expenditure 24,&77,319 
' 

41,111,084 

Page22 



Belfast City Council 
Balance ShHt As At 31 March 201 5 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council 
(assets Jess liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported In two categories. The first category of 
reserves are usable reserves, le those reserves that the authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a 
prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to 
fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those that the authority Is not able to use to provide 
services. This category of reserves Includes reserves that hold unreallsed gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), 
where amounts would only become available to provide services If the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences 
shown In the Movement In Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations'. 

2014/15 2013/14 

Notes £ £ 

Property Plant & Equipment (PP&E) 10al10b 425,887,219 
Land & Buildings 10al10b 375,920,703 

390,999,145 
360,566,874 

Infrastructure Assets 10al10b 0 0 
Landfill Site 10BI10b 0 0 
Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 108110b 13,097,909 10,600,323 
Community Assets 108110b 196 
PP&E under Construction 10BI10b 34,612,410 

193 
16,624,290 

Surplus Assets 10al10b 2,256,001 3,207,465 
Heritage Assets 10c 3.257,665 3,042,465 
Investment Properties 10al10b 84,445,000 77,095,000 
Intangible Assets 10BI10b 274,559 0 
Assets Held for Sale 10d 1,695,001 0 
Long Term Investments 0 0 
Investment in Associates and Jplnt Ventures 0 0 
Long Term Debtors 1411 7,707,676 9,824,133 
LONG TERM ASSETS 523,267,120 480,960,743 

Inventories 13 288,677 309,031 
Short Term Debtors 14b 24,826,050 14,729,380 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 24b 87,700,811 83,777,392 
Assets Held for Sale 10d 1.500.000 4,497,574 

CURRENT ASSETS 114,315,538 103,313,377 

Bank Overdraft 42,023,555 37,833,021 
Short Term Borrowing 15a 3,073,373 0 
Short Term Creditors 16• 24,357,382 19,244,673 
Provisions 17 6.242,512 6,042,717 
Uabllltles In Disposal Groups 0 0 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 75,696,822 63,120,411 

Long Term Creditors 16b 0 0 
Provisions 17 2,899,257 1,351,998 
Long Term Borrowing 15b 20,084,871 23,937,418 
Other Long Term Liabilities 19 108,466,942 91,174,942 
Donated Assets Account 20 410,000 410,000 
Capital Grants Receipts In Advance 21 21,827 82,496 
LONG TERM UABILIT1ES 131,882,897 116,956,854 

NET ASSETS 430,002,939 404,196,855 

USABLE RESERVES 25al25b 50,862,651 52,840,311 
Capital Receipts Reserve 25al25b 1,243,065 943,065 
Capital Grants Unapplied Account 25al25b 0 0 
Capital Fund 25al25b 27,589,083 23,402,740 
Renewal and Repairs Fund 25al25b 0 0 
Other Balances and Reserves 25al25b 2,898 8,551,991 
General Fund 25a/25b 22,027,605 19,942,515 
UNUSABLE RESERVES 25a/25b 379,140,288 351,356,544 
Capital Adjustment Account 25a/25b 388,840,756 384,209,597 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 25al25b 0 0 
Revaluation Reserve 25al25b 100,028,623 79,446,295 
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 25al25b 0 0 
Pensions Reserve 25a/25b (1 08,466,942) (91 '174,942) 
Capital Receipts Deferred Account 25al25b 0 0 
Accumulated Absences Account 25a/25b (1 ,262,149) (1 ,124,406) 
LandflB Regulations Reserve 25al25b 0 0 
Provisions Ofscot1nt Rate Reserve 25al25b 0 0 
NET WORTH 430,002,939 404,196,855 
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Belfast City Council 
Cash Flow Statement at 31 March 2015 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting period. The 
statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, 
investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the 
extent to which the operations of the authority are funded by way of taxation and grant Income or from the recipients of 
services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for 
resources which are intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing 
activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council. The 
Council reports cash flows from operating activities using the indirect method, whereby net Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or 
future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of revenue or expense associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. 

Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 

Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of 
service-s for noncash movements 

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit 
on the provision of services that are investing and 
financing activities 

Net cash flows from operating activities 

Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 

Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 

Net increase or decrease in cash and cash 
equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
reporting period 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
reporting period 

Notes 

24a), 24c) 

24d) 

24e) 
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2014/15 
£ 

15,209,705 

9,379,998 

(15,788,992) 

8,800,711 

(8,288,651) 

(779,174) 

(267,114) 

45,944,371 

45,677,257 

2013114 
£ 

(4,707,813) 

24,470,230 

(5,363,734) 

14,398,683 

(6,996,195) 

(3,751,089) 

3,651,399 

42,292,972 

45,944,371 



Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

1A Accounting Policies 

GtrMnll Princlpln 

The Statement of Accounts summarises tile COUI1CITS transaetlons for tht 2014/t 5 flllal1dal year end Its po5.tlol1al the year-end of 31 Mlrc:h 2015 The Coundlls required to prepare 
anannuel Statement ot Aecounts In a form ~ed by the ~rtment ot the Environment In accordance witl1 teg~Rtlons 4 (I) end (2) In the Local Govemment (Accounts and Audit) 
Regulations (Northern l ret.nd) 20081n accordance with proper IICCOUT1IIng pn~etlces. These practices primarily comprise tht Code of Practice on local Author1ty Accounting In tile 
United Kingdom 2014115 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2014115 (StRCOP), supported by International Fnandal Repoltlng Standards (IFRS) The accounting convention 
adopted In tht Statement of Accounts Is princlpally historical cost, modilled by the revaluatJon of certain categories or non-currvnt assets and financial Instruments The Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting 11 the United Kingdom 2014115 also requires disclosure In respect or: 

Summary of Stgnlncant Accounting Policies 

I) Aeeruala of lneome and Expenditure 

- Revenue from the sale or goods Is recognised when the Coundl trensllll'l the slgnlfocant risks and rewards of owner~~ hip to the pur~:h.,er and It Is probable that economic benefits or 
servlee polenta! associated with the tnmsac:tlon will flow to the Council 

- Revenue from the provlslon of servlees Is recognised when the Council can me .. ure reliably the pen:entage of eompletlon of the lt<~t~sacllon and ~ Is probable that economic benellb 
or servlc:e polenllal associated with the trensactlon will flow to the Council 

- Supplies are recorded as expend~ura when they are consumed-whlnt there Is a gap between tht date supplies are nteelved and thelr consumption, they are earried as lnvenlorle$ 
on the Balanee Sheet. 

- Expenses In relation to servleas received (Including services provided by employees) are racorded as expendit~~n~ when the services are recelwd rather than when payments are 
made 

- lntenast payable on bomlwlngs and neeelvable on Investments Is aeeounted for on the basis of the elfectlve Interest rate for the relevant financlellnstrument rather than the eash flows 
fixed or detennlned by the contract. 

- Where revenue end expend~re have been recognised but eash has not been received or paid, a debtor or ereditor lor the relevant amQUnt Is recorded in tha Balance Sheet. Where It 
Is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance or debtors Is written down and a charge made to revenue lor the Income that might not be conectad. 

If) Caah and c .. tt Equivalents 

Cash Ia rapt'tSented by ealh In hand and ~ witl1 flnanclallnstltullons repayable wtlhout penalty on notice of not more then 24 houri. Cash equivalents are Investments thai mature 
In sbl months or less from the date of ac:qulsltlon and that are readily convel11bla to known amounts of eash with lnsignlllcant risk of change In value. In the Cash Flow Statemenl, eash 
and eash equivalents are ahown net of bank overdrafts that 1n1 repayable on demand and form an Integral part of tile Counell's cash management. Bank overdrafts are 5hown within 
cunent llbllllles on tht bllance a heel 

Ill) Contingent Aaaats 

A eonUngent assat arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset whose existence WiH only be confmed by the oecunenca or otherwise or uncertain 
future events not wholly within the eontnot of tht Council. Contingent assets ara not recognised In the Balance Sheet but disclosed In a nate to the accounts where Ills probable that there 
will be an Inflow of economic benefits or service poten\Jal 



I~) Contingent L11bllltlel 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken plac;e that gives the Cound a possible obllgallon whose exlstenc:e will only be c:onllrmed by the oc:c;urrenc;e 01' otherN!se or 
unc:ertaln future events not wholly wilhln the control of the Counc:N. Conllngent labilities also arise In circumstanc;es where a provision would otherN!se be made but either It Is not 
probable that an OUI1Iow of resources will be required 01' the amount of the obligation c:annot be mel$ured reliably. Contlngenlliabllitles are not rec;ognised In the Balance Sheet but 
dlsdosed In a note to the ac;c;ounts. 

v) Employee Benefltl 

Short-term employee benelltl are those due to be settled wilhln 12 months of the year-end. They Include suc:h IN!ntfots as wages and salaries, paid annuat leave and paJd s1c:1t leave, 
bonuses and non-monetary benelits (e.g. c:ars) for c:urrent employees, and are rec;ognlsed as an expense In the yvar In wl1idl employees rwnder servlc:e to the Council An aa:tualls 
made lor the c:ost of hOliday entitlements earned by employees but not taken before the yvar-end and wl1idl employees c:an c:arry forward lnlo the next f.nancial v-ar. 

Termination benef~s are amounts payable as a resu~ of a dec:lslon by the Council to terminate an otriCI!f's employment before the nonnat retirement date or an olrte:er's decision to 
ac:c:epl voluntary redunc!anc:y and are charged on an ac:auals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive inc:ome 1nc! Elcpendnure Statement at the elllller of: a) when 
the offer c;annot be withdrawn or b) when the related restruc:turlng c;osts are Incurred. 

Where termination benefits Involve the enhanc:ement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund balanc;e to be charged with the amount payable by the Counc:il to the 
pension fund or pensioner in the yvar, not the amount c;alc;ulated ec;c;orc!ing to the relevant ac;c;ounUng standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required 
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the noUonal debits end c;redlts for pension enhanc;ament terminaUon benents and replace them with debits fOI' the c;ash paJd to the pension 
lund and pensioners and eny suc:h amounts payable but unpaid at the yvar-end. 

Po1t Employment Blnenta 

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern lrelanc! loc:al Government Olllc;ers' Pension Fund administered by the Northern lrellnd Loc:al G<Mmment Ofllc;ers" 
Supe111(111U81ion Committee. The sc:hame provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), eltned as employees Wllf1ted 101' the Council. 

The Northern lteland Loc:ai Gowrnment Otl1cens" Pen• loft Fund 

The Northem Ireland Local Government Olllc:ers' Pension Fund Is ea:ounted fOI' 11 a defined benefits sc:heme. 

The Uabililies of the Northam Ireland Loc:al Government Ofkers" Pension Fund ettrlbutable to the Counc;Jt are Included in the Balance Sheet on an Ktullllal bests using the projec;tad untt 
method- i.e. an assessment of the future payments lhlt wi• be madl in relation to retirement beneftls earned to date by employees. based on assumptions about mortdty rates. 
employve turnover rates • etc;, and projec:tions of projected eemings lor current employees. 

LlabiMties are discounted to their vatua at current prlc;es, using a disc;ount rate of 3.2%. A c!isc;ounl rate Is required to be set equal to the c:umml rate of return on an AA-ratad (or 
equivalent) corporate bone! "of equivalent currency and term to the scheme llabllllles". The c!iscount rate is based on the Aon Hewitt GBP Selle;! M Curve using the duraUon of the 
Councirs Liability. 



The assets of 111e Northern I~ LDcal GovernnMnl Olfocers' pension fund atlributable to ll1e Council are lnduded In the Balance Sheel at !heir fair value: 

quoled secur1tles - current bid price 
unquoted secuntles - professlonal estimate 
property - marltet value 
uniUsed S&Qir1Ues - current bid price 

The change In the net pensions llabi~ty Is analysed Into seven components 

Within lhe Cost of S.rvlcu 

Cummt Service Cost -the Increase In the present value of ll1e def'ltMid benefit obUgaUon (liabiNtles) resulting from employee service In the currenl 
period. 

Put Service Cost- (w!lere appllc:able) the change In ll1e present value of the deflll8d benefll obUgallon for employee nrvtc:a In prior periods. 
resulting from a plan amendmenl (the lntroduc:llon or wllhdtawl of, or changes to, a delined benef• plan) or a cultailment (a 1lgnif1Cant reduction In ll1e 
number of employees covered by the plan). 

Any Gains or Losses on Settlement- (where applicable) arising where a council ent81$ Into a transaction that eliminates all further legal or 
constructive obligations for part or all of the benefits provided under a defined benefll plan. 

Wllhln Flnmclngand Investment Income and Expenditure 

Net Interest on the Net Canned aen.nt liability (Aaset) -the change In the net defoned benefit llablily (asset) that arises from the passage of 
lime, 

Wllhln Other Compre,.nslve Income and Expenditure (RemNsurements) 

The Return on Plan Assets- excluding amounts recognised In the Net Interest on the Net Defined Benent Uability (Asset). This Includes Interest, 
dMdends and other Income der1vtd from lhe plan assets, togelher with reaNsed and unreallsed gains or losses on the plan assets, less any costs of 
managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the plan Itself other lhan tax Included In the actuarial assumpUons used to measure the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation. 

Actllllflll Gains and LoaMI- change$ In the present value of the defoned benellt obtigetlon resulting from; a) eJpelience adjustments (the effects of 
ditferences belween the previous aduatial assumpUons and what till actually oc:ctJmld) and b) the eflects of changes In ectuarialassumpUons, 

Any change In the Effect of the Asaet Ceiling- (where applicable) excluding amounts included In the Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit 
Uability (Asset). 

Wllhln lhe Movement In Ruervu Stalemltllt Appropriations 

ConttlbuUons by Scheme Participants -lhe Increase In scheme liabilities and assets due to payments into the scheme by employees (w!lere 
Increased contribution lncteases pension due to the employee In the fulure). 

Contributions by Ule Employer· lhe Increase In scheme assets due to payments Into the Kheme by the employer. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with lhe amount payable by the Council to lhe pension fund or directly to 
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are made to and from the 
Pensions ReHMI to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and penslon8!$ and any such 
amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that artses on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the benefiCial Impact to the General Fund of being required 
to account for retirement benef~s on lhe basis of cash llows rather than as benems are earned by employees. 

Dtscnttlonery Benefits 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discnttlonary -us of retirement benefits In the event of ellfly retirements. IVry liabilkles estimated to at11e as a result of an award to 
any member of stat111111 accrued In the year of the decision to make the award and eccounted for using the same policies that are applied to the Northam Ireland Local Government 
Ofllcers' pension fund. 

hvo %7 



vi) Eventa Attar the B1l1nce ShHt D1te 

Events 811111' the b1lance sheet dale ant those events, both favourable and unfiiYOUtllble, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of 
Accounts Is authol1sed for Issue. Two types of events can be Identified 

• those the! provide evidence of condltlon1 that existed at the end of the reporting period- the Statement of Accounts Is adjusted to reflect such events 

• those that are lndk:allve of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Statement of Accounts Is not adjusted to reflect such events, but whara a category of events would 
have a material alfect dlsclosura Is made In the notes of the natura of the events and their estimated fonanclal el!ect. 

The financial statements may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are authorised for Issue. Tills date wit be reCOided on the flfl8l1clal slalements and Is ·usually the date 
the Local Government Auditor Issues hls cartlfteate and opinion Where material adjustments are made In this period they wit be disclosed. 

Events taklng place after the date of authorisation for Issue are not raflectad In the Statement of Accounts. 

vii) Exceptlonllltams 

VVhen Items of Income and expense era material. their natura and amount Is disclosed separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or In the 
notes to the accounts, depending on how significant thel1ems are to an understanding of the Council's financial performance. 

vHl) Prior Period Adjustments, ChlnQH In Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 

Pr1or period adjustments may arise as a result of a change In accounting poltdes or to c:otreet a material error. Changes In accounting estimates II1V accoooled for prospedlvefy, le., In 
the cumtnt and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a pr1or period adjustment 

Changes In accounting policies are only made wllen required by proper accounting practices or the change provides mora reliable or relevant Information about the effect of 
transactions, othlll' events and conditions on the Council' a financial position or financial perfonnance. Where a change Is madll, It Is applied retrospectively by adjusting opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as If the new porq had always been applied. 

Material errors discovlll'ed In prior period flgunts are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

be) Flnancl.lllnstruments 

Most financial instruments held by Councils would fall to be classified Into just one class of financial liability and two classes of financial assets: 

Financial Llabllltltl 
Amonlsed Cost 

Flnanc111 A .. eu 

Loans and Receivables 
Available for Sale 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet wllen the Counc:D becomes 1 party to the contractual provisions of a flnanclal lnstrument and are Initially measun!d at fair value 
and are canled at lllelr amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 
lntaresl payable are based on the caiT}'Ing amount of the llablllty. muHipOed by the ellective rate of nterest for the Instrument. The elfactlve Interest rate Is lhe rate that exactly discounts 
estimated futuro cash payments OVIII' the life of the Instrument to the amount at which It was originally recognised. 

For most or the bonvwlngs that the Council has, this means that the amount presented In the Balance Sheet Is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued Interest), and Interest 
c:hafll'd to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Is the amount payable fCK the year according to the loan agreement. 

Gains and losses on the repunchase or early settlement of bolrowlng are credlted and debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure fine In the Comprehensive 
Income and ExpendltlK11 Statement In the year of repunchase/se!Uement. H~vlll', where repunchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfoliO that Involves the 
modlflcatlon or exchange or txlstlng Instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the wnte-down 
to the Comprahenslve Income and Expenditure Statement Is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the el!er;tlve Interest rata. 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, regulatkms allow the Impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread 
over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the tlll'm that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount rac:eivable 
when M was repaid The ntc:onclllatlon of amounts charged to the Comprehenslve Income and Expenditure Statement to the Ml chetgfl required against the District Fund Balance Is 
managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account In the Movement In Reserves Statement. 

Financial Assets 

Financial assats ara classtned Into two types: 
• loans and receivables - assets that hava fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted In an active market 

·available-lor-sale assets - that have a quoted market price and/or do not have f~ed or determinable payments 

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet wllen the Council becomes a party to the contractual provision• of a financial Instrument and antlnlt ally measured at lair 
value. They are then measured at thelr amortlsed cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement for Interest recelv~ble are based on the caiT}'Ing amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of Interest for the Instrument. Far most of the loans the! the Council has 
made, this means that the amount presented In the Balance Sheet Is the outstanding prfnclpal receivable (plus accrued Interest) and Interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement Is the amount receivable for the year In the loan agreement. 

Where assets ara ldenllfled as Impaired because of a Hke~hood arising from a past evant that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset Is written down and a charge 
made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The Impairment loss Is measurad as the difference 
be,_ the canylng amount and the present value of the ravlsad future cash flows discounted at the asset's original ellectlve i1llernt rille. 

lvty gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition or an asset ara c:ntdited or debited to the FlnBilClng and Investment Income and Expendltunt line In the Comprehensive Income 
and Expendjture Statement. 



Available-for-late assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the conlnJctual provisions of a fllllnclallnstrument and ara lnltlaly measured and 
canled a1 fair value Where the asset has ftxed or determinable payments annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line In the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement for Interest receivable are based on the amortised COlt ot the asset multiplied by the elledhle rate ot Interest for the lnstrumeot. Whent there are no frxed or 
determinable payments. Income (e.g,, dfvklends) Is c:rediled to the Comprehensive Income and Expendilut11 Statement when n becomes rec:elvlble by the Counol. 

Assets ara maintained In the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the folowing p(fnc:iples: 

- lnslrvmenls with quoted mar!r.et prices - the mar!r.et price 
- other ln$trumenls with frxed and determinable payments- discounted cash flow analysis 
- aqu11y sh .. s with no quoted market prices - Independent appraisal of company valuations 

Changes In fair value are balanced by an entJy In the Avatable-for-SIIe Reserve and the gain/loss Is recognised In the Surplus or Oeflc:lt on Revaluation of AvaBable-for ·Sale Financial 
Assets The exc.pUon Is where impairment losses have been Incurred - these are debited to the Ananc:lng and 'nvestment Income and Expenditure line In the Comprehensive Income 
and ~enditure Statement, a ong with any net gain or loss for lht asset at:CUmulated In the Available-for·Sale Res&M~. 

Where assets are Identified as Impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due under the contract wil not be made (frxed or determinable payments) or fair 
value falls below cost the asaet ls Willian down and a charge made to the Ananc:lng and Investment Income and Expenditure tina In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement- If the asset has frxed or determinable payments, the Impairment toss Is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future 
cnh flows discounted etthe asset's anginal effective Interest rate. Otherwise, the Impairment loss !s measured as any shortfall of fair value against the ecq~sll'on cost of the 
Instrument (net of any p(fnclpat repayment and amortlsaUon). 

Any gains and tosses thatertse on the de-fecognltlon of tha asset are credited or debited to the Ananclng and Investment Income and Expenditure line In !he Comprehensive lncoma 
and Expenditure Statement. along with any ac:cumulaled gains or losses previously recognised In the Available-for-Sale Reserve. 

Where fair value caMol be measured reliably, the Instrument Is cerrted at cost (less any Impairment tosses). 

11) Foreign CUrrency Tl'lna .. tlon 

Where the Council has entered Into a transaction denominated In a foreign c:urrency, the transaction Is converted Into ster11ng at the exchange ra1e applcabla on the date the transaction 
was affective Whana IIITIOtJnls In foralgn CUITenC)' are outstanding at !he year-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rita at 31 Marl:h Resolllng gains or losses ere 
recognised In the Financing and Investment Income and Expenclitun! line In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 



xi) Gonmmtnt Grants and Contribution• 

Whether paid on account, by Instalments or 1n arrears, government gn~~~ts and third party conlrlbullons and donations ant recagnised as due to the CouncH when there Is reasonable 
a55urance thai 

- 111e Council will comply wilh lht c:ondlllons attached to lht payments, and 

- the granls « contributions will be received. 

Amounls recagnlsad as due ara not credited to the CompAihenslve Income and Expenditure Statement until condillons attac:tq to lht grant « conlrlbutlon have been satisfied~ 

Conditions are stfpulallons thai specify thai the future economle benelils « HfVk:t poltnllal embodied 1n the asset ac;qu!red using the grant or conlribullon are required to be consumed 
by lht rec1p1tn1 as speei(led « future economic: benetits « service potenUal must be returned to the transferor. 

Montes advanced as grants and contributions for whk:h conditions have not been satisfied are earned 1n the Balance Sheet as cred~ora When conditions ara satisfied, the grant or 
contribution Is credited to the relevant service tine (at111butable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specffic Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and a• 
capital grants) In the Comprehensive Income and Expendituna Statement. 

Where capital grants are cred~ed to the Comprehensive Income and Expend~ure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance In thl Movement In Reserves 
Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, Ills posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where K has been appNed, K Is posted to the 
CapKal Adjustment Account. Amounts In the Capital Grants UnappNed Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account oncathay have been applied to fund capital 
expenditure 

xll) Intangible Assets 

Expendilure on non-monetary assets that do not haw physical substance but are controlled by the Council as a result of past ewnts (e g. sonwar.licences) Is capitalised when lis 
expected that future economic benefits «service potential will aow from lht lnlanglbll asset to the Council. 

lntemllly genetatld assets are capllallsed when! It Is demonstrable that the project Is lechnlcaly feasllle and Is Intended to be completed (with adequate niSOIReS being avalable) and 
the Council will be able to generate future economic benefrts or delver service potential by being able to sel or use the asset. Expenditure is capilallsed where ~ can be meBSUnld 
reliably as attributable to the asset and reslrided to that incUITed during llle development phase (research expenditure Is not capltaiiJed) 

Expenditure on the development of websltes Is not c:apltllllsed If thl Wlblllels solely or primarily Intended to promote or advertise the Council' a goods or services. 

Intangible assets are measured Initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets held by the CouncA can be determinld by reference to an active market In 
practk:a, no Intangible asset held by the CouncD meets this a1terion, and they are therefore canied at amortlsed CXJSI. The depreclable amount of an Intangible asset Is amortlsed over 
Its usetull~eto the relevant service line(s) In Cost of Servk:as on Continuing Operations In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset Is tested for lmpaimlent 
whenever there Is an Indication that the asset might be Impaired - any Iones .-.cognised are posted to the relevant service llne(s) In Cost of Selvk:as on Continuing Operations In the 
Comprehensive Income and Expend~ure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an Intangible asset Is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line In 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where upendlture on Intangible assets quaAfles as capital expend"ure for statutory purposes, amortisation, Impairment tosses and disposal gains and losses 11111 not pennlned to have 
an Impact on the Ganeral Fund Balance. The gains and tosses are therefore reversed out of the Dlslrlct Fund Balance in tha Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the 
CapKal AdJustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £5,000) tha Capital Receipts Reserve. 

alii) lnventorin & Long Term Connc:ts 

Inventories 1n11ncluded In the Batanca Sheet at the lower of COil and net realisable value. The cost of Inventories Is assigned using the latest lnvoic:ed price. This Is not materially 
different from valuation on a Firat In Firat Out (FIFO) basis as recommended by lntematlonal Accounllng Slandard 2 Inventorial (IAS2). 

Long Tenm contrac11 Bnl accounted for on the basis of clag1ng the surplus or defiCit on the provisk)n of Hf1lices wilh the value of WOf1ts .and aeMc:es received under the contract dullng 
the flnancJal year 



xlv) Investment Property 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn A!lllals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition Is not met if the propeny Is used In any Wf!l/to facilitate the delivety of 
servtce1 « produCtion of goods or Is held I« sale. 

lnVfltment properties are measured lnlllaly at cost and subsequently at fair value based on the aiTKIWlt at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm s 
length. Investment propenles ant not depreciated but ant revalued amualy according to malket conditions at the year-end. Gains and rosses on rtvaluallon 11111 posted to the Financing 
and tnvHtment Income and Expencfrture line In the Compnthensive lnc:ome and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment Is applied to gains end !osse~ on disposal. 

Renr.fs received In ntlatlon lo Investment properties ant crvdlted to the Financing end Investment Income nne In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and ntsult In a 
gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not panmltted by statutory arrangements to have an Impact on the Dlstrld Fund Balance. 
The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance In the Movement In Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital AdJustment Account and the CapUal 
Rec:elpts Reserve 

xv) Landfill Allowance Schemes 
The Ulndflll Allowanc:as SCheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme (Northern Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Aulhorltles are allocated annual target figures for the 
mllldmum amount of biodegradable munldpal waste the! can be sent to landfill but lh1111 are no tradable amowances Ills not a 'cap and trede' scheme since landfill allowances are not 
tradable. For this reason, landfill allowances are not recognised as assets on the Balance Sheet 

xvl) Lea1e1 

Lease• ere c:lasstrl&d as finance teases wtlera the tenns of the tease transfer substanllally •• the risks and rewards Incidental to ownership of the property from the lessor to the lessee. 
All other leases are classified as operating teases. 

~a lease covers bolh land and bulk:linvs. the lend and buildings llement• 1111 considered separately for classillcatlon 

Amlngementa that do not have the legal status of a tease but convey 1 right to use an asset in return lor payment are accounted f« under thls po'lcy wtle11! lulf11ment of the B~T~~ngemenl 
Is dependent on the use or speclroc assets, 

Tht Coune!l as Ltsste 

Property. plant and equipment held under Rnance teases Is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at Its fair value measured at the lease's Inception (or the 
present value altha minimum lease payments, If lower). The asset recognised Is matched by a Habfity lor the ob lgat'on to pay the lessor lnltlal direct costs of the Council are added to 
the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums pald on entry Into a lease are app1ed to writing down the lease llabtllly. Contingent rents are charged as expenses In the periods In whk;h 
lhey are Incurred 

Leese payments are apportioned between· 

• a charge lor the acquisition or the Interest In the property- applied to write down the lease l iability, and 

• a finance c:haiVe (debiled to the F1nandng and Investment Income and Expenditure line In the Compnehenslve Income and Elcpand;IIIAI Statement) 

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under ronance leases Is accounted for usng the policies applied generally to auc:h assets, subject to depreclllllon being c:halged over the lease 
tennlf this Is shorter then the assai's eslimaled useful life 

The Coundt Is not required to raise distrld rates to cover depreclaUon or revaluation and lmpalnment losses arising on leased auets. Instead, 1 prudent annual provision Is made from 
revenue towards the deemed capilli Investment In ac:cordanca with statutory requirements Depredation and Impairment losses are theraforemplaced by a revenue piOIIIslon In the 
General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction wtth the Capital Ad,ustment Account In the Movement In Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 

Operating LeiSes. 

Rental• pak:l under operating teases are charged to the Compmhenslve Income and Elcpenditlll'1! Statement as an wcpense or the services benefrtlng from use of the leased property, 
plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life or the lease, even If this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g, thera rs a rent-free period at the 
commencement of the lease) 

The Counell as L!Ssor 

Finance Leases 

Where the CounCil grants a finance tease over 1 propeny or an Item of plant« equipment, the relevant asset Is written out or the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of 
the lease, the carrying amount of the asset In the Balance Sheet (wtlether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale)ls wrttten off to the Other Oparallng.ExpendHure line In 
the Comprehensive Income and Expandltlll'1! Statement as pan of lhe gain« loss on disposal A gain, representing the Council"s net Investment In the lllla, ls credited to the same 
l1ne In the Comprehensive lnc:ome and Ellpanditure Statement also as part of the gain or lOss on disposal ( a. netted off against the carrying value of the asltt at the llme of disposal}, 
matched by a lease IIS!I (long tenm debtor) In the Balance Slleet. 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned ~: 

• a Charge for the acquisition or the Interest In the property- eppUed to Willa down the lease asset ~ong term debtor) together with any premiums received, and 

• ftnancelncome (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure fne In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) 



The gain Ctlld~ed to the Comprehensive Income and Ellpendlture Statement on disposal is not permitted by statute to lncnlase the Genenll Fund Balance and will be r.quinld to be 
treated as a capital receipt. Wheru a premium has been rvcelved, this Is posted out of the G-ral Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Renrv. In the Movement In Reserves 
Statement Where the amount due In rulation to the lease asset Is to be settled by the payment of Allltals In future financial years, this Is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the 
OefetTed Capital Receipts Reserve In the Movement In Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid, the element for the charge for the acquisition of the Interest In the 
property Is used to Wlite down the lease asset (debtor). ~ this point, the defend capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve 

The Wllt1en-off valuQ of disposals Is not a charge against council tax. as the cost of fiXtd assets is fuly pnMded for under separele ~ts lor capltalllnanclng. Amounts are 
therefore IIPPf'OI)Iiated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance In the Movement In Reserves Statement. 

Opereling t.ea&e& 

'Miera the Councll11f8111s an operating lease over a property or an llem of plant or equipment. the assails retained In the Balance Sheet. Rental Income Is credited to the 01her 
Operating Elcpeoditure line in the Compn!henSive Income and Expenditure Statement. C...clits are made on a slllllghl·llne basis over the lila of the lease, ewn If this does not malch the 
pattern of payments (e g., there Is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs Incurred In negotiating and ananglng the tease are added to the cany1ng 
amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the tease tanm on the same ba&is as rentat Income. 

xvii) Dl1poNII and Non.Cunrant Alaall Held for Sale 

When ~ becomes probable that the call)'ing amount ol an asset will be recovered principally thnough a sale lnlnsaction rather than through 111 continuing use, It is reclassified as an 
Asset Held for Sale The asset is revalued Immediately before reclasalftCBtion and then carried altha lower of this amount and fair value less costs to seU. Where there is a subsequent 
decrease to lair value less costs to sell, the loss Is posted to the Other Operating Elcpenditurullne in the Comprehensive Income and Elq)enditura Statement. Gains In fair value are 
recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losaes. OepreciaUon Is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 

II assets no longer meet the allerla to be classified as Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-current assets and valued altha lower of Ms call)'ing amount before they were 
classified as Held lor Sale: adjusted for depredalion, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classlfltd as Held for Sale and their recoverable 
amount at the dale olthe decision not to sell. 

Assets that are to be decommissioned I.e. abandoned or scrapped are not rectasslfled as Assets Held for Sale 

When an asset Is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Propeny, Plant and E~ or Assets Held for Sale)ls written off 
to the Other Operating Expenditure line In the Comprehensive Income and Ellpendllure Statement as part or the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from dispoSalS (If any) are credited to 
the same line In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (I.e netted oil against the c:anylng value of the asset at the time of 
disposal) ArroJ revaluation gains accumutated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transfem!d to the Capital Adjustment Account 

Amounts greater than £5.000 received for a disposal are categorised as capitat receipts and aedded to the Capital Receipts Reserve Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from 
the General Fund Ballnceln the Movement In Reserves Statement 

The wrinen-olf value of disposa s is not a charge against district rates, as lhe cost ol fb:ed assets Is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital fmancing Amounts are 
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement In Reserves Statement. 

xvlll) Overhead• and Suppon Services 

The costs of overheads and suppon services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service In accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Servk:e Reporting Code 
of Prectlce 2014/15 (SeRCOP). The total absorption cosUng principle Is used- the lui cost of overheads and suppon services are shared between users in proportJon to the benerots 
received, with the exception ot: 

• COfPO!llle and Oemocratlc Core- costs relating to the Counc1'1 sUlCus as a mulll-functionat. demOCTcllic organisation . 

• Non Oislttbuted Costs - the cost of d scretlonary benefits -oed to employees reiJring early and any depreciation and Impairment losses chargeable on ~tonal properties. 

These two cost calegortes are defined In SeRCOP and accounted for as separate hetdlngs In the Comprehensive ncome and Expenditure Stalement , as part of Net Expenditure on 
Conllnulng Services. 



xbc) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Assets that hllve physical substence and are held for use In the productkln or supply of goods or &IIIVIces, for rental to others of for administrative purposes and that are expected to be 
used during more than one ftnanclal year ant classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Recognition 

~ on the acqulslllon, creation or enhancemenl of Property, Planl and EcM>ment Is capilallsed on an awuals basis, provided lhllt H Is probable that the future economic 
benefits or HfVIc8 potential associated wtth the Hem Wil flow to the COIIIlCI and the cost or the Hem can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintms but does not add to an assai's 
pottntlll to deliver future economic bener•s or s81Vice potential Q.e , repairs end mainten~nce) Is charged as en expense when M s lncumld. 

The Counc:JI applies a d•mln mlslevel of £25,000 to Plant & Machinery, lnfO!TIIalion Technology Equipmenl F"uctures and Fittings and OffiCe Equipmenl, meaning only assets over 
£25,000 are capitalised. Subsequent capital expenditure Is only capitalised where it provided an enhancement to the economic bener~s of the asset In excess of those prevklusly 
assessed 

Meuurement 

Assets are Initially measured at cost. comprising· 

- the plli'Chase price 
- any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating In the manner Intended by management 

- the lniUalastlmate of the costs of dismantling and removing the Item and restoring the site on which M Is located 

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs Incurred whist essets ere under construction. 

The cost of essets acquired other than by purchase Is deemed to be Ms fair value, unless the acquktion wtl not Increase the cash flows of lhe Council . In the latter case, where the 
asnt Is ecquked Ilia an exchange, the cost or lhe acquisition Is the canylng amount of the asset given Ill? by the Council. 

Dooatad asset1 are measured Initially at fair value. The djfference between fair value and any consldenlllon paid is ctedlled to the Taxation end Non-SpecrJC Gnlot Income line of the 
Comprehensive ncome and Elcpendjture Statement, unless the donation has betn made condltklnally. UntK conditions are satisfied, the gain Is held In the Donated Assets Account. 
Where galnl are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statern&nt. they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital AdJustment Account In the 
Movement In Reserves Statement 

Assets are then carried In the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases 

- Infrastructure assets and assets under construction -depreciated historic cost 

- community assets • at a nominal value as advised by the independent Chartered Surveyor 

- 1hort life asaatl, Including road vehicles. plant and equipment. ructunss and fittings, omce equipment and IT and IS equipment - dep~ated historic cost as an estimate of fair value 

- 1urplus a1sets- market value 

- all other assets - fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset In Hs existing use (exisllng use value) 

When! there Is no marltet-based evidence of fair value because of the specalist nalure of an asset, depreciated replacement cost Is used as an estlmaltl of fair value 

The Councl operates 1 rol'lllg programme for the revaluation of Land and Buildings with approximately 25% of thesa being nsvalued by physical Inspection each yeer end the remainder 
being revalued by 11 dasktop exen:isa. 

Increases In valulttons are matched by credits to the Revalultlon Reserve to recogn.se unrealsed gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure eccount whens they arise from the reversal of a loss JQvlously chlfVed to a service. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of Its formallmplementatkln. Gains erlslng before thllt dale have been consolidated 
Into the Capital Adjustment Account. 

lm!1!11npent 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there Is any lndlcatlon that an a11et may be impaired. Where Indications exist 11nd any possible dlfltrences are estimated to be 
material, the recoverable amount of the asset Is estimated and, where this Is lesa than the carrying amount of the asset, an lmpalnnent louis necognlsed for the shortfall. 

Where Impairment losses are Identified, they are accounted for by: 

-where there Is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset In the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amounl of the asset Is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains), with any excess charged to the service Hne In the Comprehensive Income end Elcpendjtunt Statement. 

-where there Is no balance In the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset Is written dowr1 against the relevant service line(s) In the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

Where anlmpairmtnllossls reversed subsequently, the nsversal s credited to the rellvant service llne(s) In the Cllfllllr8l*lllve Income end Expenditure Statament, up to the amount 
of the original loss, adjusted for depfKlation that would have been charged If the loss had not been recogn'sed. 

The same accounting treatment Is applied to revaluatkln losses as a resuK of a general fall In asset prices across the boerd as opposed to a consumptkln of economic benefd specific to 
an asset as Is In the case of Impairment losses. 



Otpree!at!on 

Qeprec:lation Is provided lor on all depreciable Propeny, Plant end Equipment assets by the systematic allocalion of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives An exception Is 
made lor assets Wilhoul a determklable flllile useful life (that Is, lreehotd land and certain Community Assets) and assets lhat ere not yet avaitat* lor use (lor example, assets under 
construction). 

Oepracation Is charged on a sl/lllght·llne basis on lhe following classes of tangible asset. 

·buildings, Installation and littrlgs are depreciated on their lair value over the estimated remaining lives of those assets as IICMsed by the Independent Chartered Surveyors. 
Oepending on the type of bulldiog, lnstalatJon or fitting the maximum useful life will be In a range up to 60 years 

• Wrastructa.n assets, short·lf& assets,lnduding road vehicles, plant and equlp!Mnt, fiXtures and fillings, otrK:e equipment, and IT and IS equipment over their estimated useful lives 

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight·line basis over their estimated useful lives 

Oeprec:atlon Is calculated on the following bases: 

-straight·line allocation of the estimated useful lives, 

• depreclatlon Is charged In the month of capitalisation but not In the month of disposal 

Componen!lsttion 

Where an Item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost Is significant In n!lation to the total cost of the Item, the components ere deprec:Jated 
separately 

CornponenUsatlon Is orltt applicable to larger value land and buildings or equipment assets 

Reya!ua!ions 

Revaluation gains ant also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference batween CUIT1Inl value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that WOUld have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being lr.lnsferred each year from lhe Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

xx) Heritage Asseta 

Heritage Assets are assets wtth hlstancal, artistic, sclentifoc, technological, geophysical or environmental quafitles that are held and maintained principally for their conll1butlon to 
knowtedge and culture. 

Harnage Assets are those assets thai are Intended to be preserved In trust for future generations because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations, they would be held by 
this authortly In pursuit of our overall ob]ecllves In relation to the maintenance of heritage 

The COUIIcirs coHeclion of Heritage Assets (Works of Art and Civic Items) Is reported In the balance sheet at Insurance valuation, which Is based on marllel values, or If It Is not possible 
to obtain a valuation, they are maintained at historical cost less any depreciation, amortisation or Impairment losses These Insurance valuations based on martial values are updated on 
a periodic basis. 

Summary Information on Hefllage Assets has been provided for transactions In the 20t3114 and 2014/15 fonanclal years Ottalled Wormation relating to transactions has no1 been 
Included for prior years as M would not be pracUcal to do so and there Is little value added for the users ot the accounts 

xxl) Doubtful debta 

A review of debt racoverablllly Is undertaken at year end to determine the level of doubtful debts and an impaWmentloss Is recognised In respecl of speclfoc debts 11ot1era recoverabBity Is 
uncertain 

axlll Provlalons 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Councl a legal or constructive obligation that probably requires seiUemenl by a transfer of economic banents or 
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For Instance, the Coundl may be Involved in a court case that could eventually nssun In the 
making of a settlement or the pa)'lllent of compensation 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service lne In the Comprehensive Income and ExpendKure Statement In the year that the Coundl becomes aware of the 
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet dale of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking Into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made they are charged to the provision canled In lhe Balance Sheet Estimated seiUements are r.vitwed at the end of each financial year - where It 
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benelits wtll now be required (or a lower seiUement than anticipated Is made), the provision Is reversed and credMed back to the 
relevant service. 

Where some oral ot the payment required to settle a provision Is expected to be rKOVered from another party (e g. from an Insurance claim), this Is oNy recognised as Income for the 
relevant servtca if M Is vlrtualy certaln that reimbursement wil be received If the Council settles the obligallon. 

..... ,.. 



xxlll) ~&serves 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance In the Movement In Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve Is Incurred, It Is charged to the appropriate sllfVice In that year against tile Surplus or 
DefiCit on tile Provision of Services In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve Is then appropriated back Into the General Fund Balance In the Movement In 
Reserves Statement so that there Is no net charge against District Rates for the expendllure. 

Certain raseiV8s are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financlallnstruments and retirement benefits and do not represent usable resources for the 
Councll-these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts, 

xxlv) Charves to Revenue for Non .Current Assets 

Charges to revenue for non-current assets e.g. services, support services and trading accounts are debited With the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during 
!he year: 

- depl1!clatlon attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

- revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by the service whera there are no accumulated gains In the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be wril1en olt 

- amortisation of Intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 

The Council is not required to raise Olstnct Rates to cover depl1!clallon, revaluation and Impairment losses or amortlsatlons. However, It is required to make an annual provision from 
revenue to contribute towards tha reduction In Its overall bOITOWing requirement [equal to elthar an amount ca c:ulated on a prudent basis determined by the Coundlln accordance with 
statutO!}' guidance). Depredation, revaluation end Impairment losses and amortlsallons are therefore replaced by minimum revenue provision (MRP)In the General Fund Balance, by 
way of an adjusting transaction With the Capital Adjustment Account In the Movement In Reserves Statement for the diflerence between the two. 

xxv) Ravenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Expenditure Incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not resun In the creaUon of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to 
the relevant servk:e In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement In the year Where the Counc~ has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital 
resources or by boiTOWing, a transfer In the Movement In Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then revel3es out the amounts 
charged, so that there Is no Impact on the level of District Rates. 

XXVI) Value Added Tu 

All expenditure and Income, Irrespective of whether n Is revenue or capital In nature Is shown net of Value Added Tax, unless It Is Irrecoverable. 

xxvll) The Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC) 

The Council Is required to participate In the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Err!Ciency Scheme, The Council Is required to purchase and surrender allowances. currently 
retrospectively, on the basis of emissions, I.e. carbon dioxide produced as energy Is used. As carbon dioxide Is produced (I.e. as energy Is used). a liabir&ly and an expense are 
recognised. The illltllHiy wtn be discharged by surrendering allowances The liability Is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to meet the obligation, normally at the 
current market price of the number of allowances required to meet the llabiHiy altha reporting date. The cost to the Council Is recognised and reported In tile costs of the Councils 
services and Is apportioned to servk:es on the basis of energy consumption. 

xxvlll) Landfill Exploration and Evaluation 

The Council considers the facts and circumstances to determine whether an exploration and evaluatJon assai should be recognised In respect of the landfill site Including assessment of 
the amount, timing and certainly of future cash nows under I FRS 6 The Counclrs tandfin site produces gas to generate electricity and the Income from this electncily generation Is 
reducing year on year due to environmental and other uncontronable variables, With Income of £1,265k In 2014115 In comparison to £1.687k In 2013114 (this Income Is before deduction 
of relevant expenses resunlng In net income of 14/15 £540k, 13114 £614k) . The Council does not recognise any asset In respect of this gas production as any foracastlng or estimating 
of future Income Is uncartaln. The Councll cannot reHably measure or value such an asset under lAS 38 



1 B Atcout~tlng Stlnclerds Thlt Heve S..n luUid but Heve Not Yet 81111 Adoptld 

For 201-4115, the following accounting standanls have been Issued but not yet adopted within the Code of Practice on local AulhOrily Attounllng 

IFRS 13 FalrVIIue Me .. urementl2011) 

The adopllon or I FRS 13 Fair Va'ue Measurement was deferred from the 2015/1!1 Code. Woril has bHn canled out with HM Treasury to establish objectives for measunng property, 
plant and equipment that are consistent with the objective for the financial statements prescnbed In the Code. 

This work has confirmed that It Is approp!late to focus on valuing the service potential end t11us operating capacity used to deliver goads and seMc:es. Proposals were taken forwanl 
Into the consullallon for the 2015/16 Code that property, planl and equipment used to support senrice deivery Is measured on the basiS or fts senrice potential, La. and existing use 
besls. Where no mer1tetls In eldstence or assets are specialised, a depreciated replacement cost measurement wou"d be needed- These assets wll nat be formally valued at 'fair value' 
and thus under the requirements of I FRS 13 will be outside its scope. 

The Council is orr the view that these changes will have no matertallmpect an the authorities financial position or performance at this stage. 

The Council dOl$ not have matenal Habllltles measured on a fair value basis end therefore does not anticipate lhetthe provision or IFRS 13 wiH have any materla11mpect on liabilities. 

Amendments to lAS 19 Employee Benefits (Oefinld Benefit Plena: Employee Contrtbutlonaj 

In November 2013 the IASB Issued Its amendments to lAS 19. CrPFA/LASAAC considered the options In the standard for accounting for employee contrlbutlons and concluded that If 
the amount of the con!llbutlons Is Independent of the year. of servfce a council Is pennllted to recognise such con\r1butlons as a reduction to service cost In the period In wh'eh the 
related servlc;e Is rendered. This Is consistent with lhe approech cumtntly adopted and lhen!fore !heAt will not be any significant change In 11ccounting practice for the council. 

Annuellmprovements cycle• 2010 • 2012 end 2011 • 2013. 

The IASB cantes out cyd!Ql work to Identify and Implement Improvements In IFRS's The 2010· 2012 cycle was Issued In November 2013 and the 2011 . 2013 cycle was Issued In 
December 2013, These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the Europeen Union and this endorsement would be required to be adopled Into the Code There are no slgnlf1car( 
Issues atfectlng the councH emanating from the annual Improvements work. 

IFRIC 21 levin (I.e. levin lmposld by governments I 

IFRIC 21 provides guidance on eccounting for levies It! the fin1111clal statements or the peying entity. CIPFAilASAAC considers that the IFRIC would apply to local authorities and the 
2015116 coda oMII be amended to reflect th!s 

The IF RIC relates to when to recognise a liability to pey a levy that Is accounted for In 11ccordance with lAS 37 Provls ens, Contingent llabl llles and Contingent Assets. The IF RIC sets 
out that the obligating event that gives rise to the llabltity to pay a levy is the activity that trigger. lhe peymant of the levy, that the Uabmty Is recognised progntulvely If the obllgatlng 
avenc oc:an over time and the! If an obligation Is triggered an reaching a minimum threshold the liability Is recognised when thet threshold Is reached. 

The Councl does not cunvntly have any slgnlf'JCantlevles and therefore this standam will have no material impact on the financial statements. 

1C Crltlcel Judgementa In Applying Accounting Pollclee 
In applying accounting poQcfes set out from \A above the Council has had to make cenaln judgements about complex transactions or those Involving uncertainty lbout future events 
The cntlcal judgements made In the Statement of Accounts are: 

• Thera Is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government However. the Council hes determined that this uncertainty is not yet su!llclent to provide an 
Indication that the assets of the Council might be Impaired as a result or a need to close fac:lr4ies and reduce levels of service pnovlslon. 

10 Aseumptlone Mede About the Future and Other Major Sources of Eetlmetlon Uncartllnty 

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated flguAts the\ IAI based on assumptions made by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates BAt made taking 
Into account historlcal experience, current trends and other relevant factor.. However, because balances cannot be detenninad with certainty, actual results could be matallally different 
from the assumptJons and estimates 

The items In the Counc;l's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2015 for which thiR!Is a slgntocant rlsk of materlalad;ustment In the forthcoming fmanclal year aAt as foUaws: 

~slons Uabllity 

Estimation of the netliebiUty to pay pensions depends an a number of complex Judgements relating lo the discount rata used, the Atte at which salaries are projectld to Increase, 
changes In retirement ages, mortality rat11s and 11xpected returns on pension fund assets A fml or consulting actuaries Is engaged to provide the Council with expert advice aboultha 
assumptions to be applied. 

The pension figures disclosed In these financial statements ant sensitive to the assumptions used. 

The approxtmatatmpect or thanglng kay assump11ons an the present value or the funded defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2015 and the projected service cost for the year 
ending 31 March 2018 Is sat out In Note 19. 



Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

2a Segmental Reporting Analysis - Current Year 

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. The segmental reporting 
notes within the financial statements are based on the summary first page of the General Fund- Service 
Income and Expenditure Analysis in the Department of Environment's Accounts Direction. 

The General Fund - Service Income and Expenditure Analysis as presented to the Department of 
Environment is as follows: 

2014/15 

Services Gross .Gross Income Net 
Expenditure Expenditure/(lnc 

orne\ 

£ £ £ 

Culture and Heritage 7,743,844 2,901,672 4,842,172 
Recreation and Sport 46,819,470 6,521 ,564 40,297,906 
Tourism 6,989,966 1,365,098 5,624,868 
Community Services 9,347,737 1,712,732 7,635,005 
Leisure and Recreational Services 70,901 ,017 12,501,066 58,399,951 

Cemetery, Cremation and Mortuary 2,670,036 2,450,757 219,279 
Environmental Health 18,220,011 2,841,557 15,378,454 
Flood Defence and Land Drainage 0 0 0 
Public Conveniences 466,406 2,285 464,121 
Licensing 0 682 (682) 
Other Cleaning 14,765.415 52,504 14,712,911 
waste Collection 16,775,732 4,117,497 12,658,235 
Waste Disposal 9,613,157 139,619 9,473,538 
Building Control 5,143,906 3,112,885 2,031,021 
Other Community Assets 0 0 0 
Minor Works 0 0 0 

Environmental Services 67,654,663 12,717,786 54,936,877 

Democratic Representation and 
Management 8,498,333 935,453 7,562,880 
Corporate Management 11,025,149 2,060,147 8,965,002 

DRM and Corporate Management 19,523,482 2,995,600 16,527,882 

Economic Development 14,934,370 3,868,068 11,066,302 
Trading Services 6,567,137 3,274,102 3,293,035 
Non Distributed Costs (388,530) (837,000) 448,470 
Central Services to the Public 2,731 ,662 1,229,875 1,501,787 

Other Services 23,844,639 7,535,045 16,309,594 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 181 ,923,801 35,749,497 146,174,304 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

2a Segmental Reporting Analysis -Current Year 

Reconciliation to Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of portfolio income and expenditure relate to the 
amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Net Cost of Services in Service Analysis 

Items excluded from Service Analysis: 
Add amounts not reported in Service Analysis but included 
in Net Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

Remove amounts reported in Service Analysis but not 
included in Net Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 

£ 

Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

Items included in Net Operating Expenditure excluded from Service Analysis: 

0 

0 

Other Operating Expenditure 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

(15,564) 

(9,101,774) 

Surplus or Deficit on Discontinued Operations 

Net Operating Expenditure per the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 
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0 

£ 

146,17 4,304 

0 

146,174,304 

(9,117,338) 

137,056,966 



Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

2b Segmental Reporting Analysis- Comparative Year 

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. The segmental reporting 
notes within the financial statements are based on the summary first page of the General Fund- Service 
Income and Expenditure Analysis in the Department of Environment's Accounts Direction. 

The General Fund- Service Income and Expenditure Analysis as presented to the Department of 
Environment is as follows: 

2013/14 

Services Gross Gross Income Net 
Expenditure Expenditure/( 

Income} 
£ £ £ 

Culture and Heritage 7,346,506 3,327,066 4,019,440 
Recreation and Sport 511103,524 7,278,561 43,824,963 
Tourism 7,841,925 2,355,484 5,486,441 
Community Services 10,039,212 2,098,437 7,940,775 
Leisure and Recreational Services 76,331,167 15,059,548 61,271,619 

Cemetery, Cremation and Mortuary 2,782,188 2,214,242 567,946 
Environmental Health 19,075,571 2,916,577 16,158,994 
Flood Defence and Land Drainage 0 0 0 
Public Conveniences 348,928 2,391 346,537 
Licensing 3,195 648 2,547 
Other Cleaning 14,614,339 45,046 14,569,293 
Waste Collection 15,860,061 3,701,302 12,158,759 
Waste Disposal 10,412,079 7,818 10,404,261 
Building Control 5,277,204 2,697,020 2,580,184 
Other Community Assets 0 0 0 
Minor Works 0 0 0 
Environmental Services 68,373,565 11,585,044 56,788,521 

Democratic Representation and 
Management 5,679,990 2,703 5,677,287 
Corporate Management 11,234,868 3,655,534 7,579,334 

DRM and Corporate Management 16,914,858 3,658,237 13,256,621 

Economic Development 10,341,475 2,916,536 7,424,939 
Trading Services 8,213,657 3,044,715 5,168,942 
Non Distributed Costs 1,261,259 (103,880) 1,365,139 
Central Services to the Public 2,037,608 1,200,946 836,662 

Other Services 21,853,999 7,058,317 14,795,682 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 183,473,589 37,361,146 146,112,443 
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Reconciliation to Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of portfolio income and expenditure relate to the 
amounts Included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Net Cost of Services in Service Analysis 

Items excluded from Service Analysis: 
Add amounts not reported in Service Analysis but included 
In Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

Remove amounts reported in Service Analysis but not 
included in Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

£ 

Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

Items included in Net Operating Expenditure excluded from Service Analysis: 

0 

0 

Other Operating Expenditure 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

(6,110) 

600,737 

Surplus or Deficit on Discontinued Operations 

Net Operating Expenditure per the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 
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0 

£ 

146,112,443 

0 

146,112,443 

594,627 

146,707,070 



Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

3a Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations 

2014/15 2014115 2013(14 2013/14 

Notes £ £ £ £ 

Amounts Included In the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be 
excluded when determining the Movement on the General 
Fund Balance for the year: 

Impairments {losses & reversals) of non-current assets 101/b & 10dle {939,307) 0 

Del'ei:Ognition {other than disposal) of non-current assets 10alb & 10dle 10,753 28,014 

Revaluation increases/decreases taken to Surplus/Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 101/b & 10dle {5,067,619) 6,767,529 

Depreciation charged in the year on non-current assets 10al10b,24a 10 144 044 4,147,871 9 996877 16,792,420 

Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 0 0 

Carrying amount of non current assets sold 10alb & 10dle 2,733,036 24,873 

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and 
intangible assets 24,2S 12748 6001 {15,564) 130 9831 {6,110) 

Difference between finance costs calculated on en accounting 
basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with statutory 
requirements 2S 0 0 

Net charges made for retirement benefits In accordance with 
lAS 19 19 17,216,000 19,697,000 

Direct revenue financing of Capital Expenditure 11,25 (7,043,243) (6,699,992) 

Capital Grants and Donated Assets Receivable and Applied in 
year 9b {13,101 ,061) {6,014,331) 

Capital Grants Receivable and Unapplied in year 9c 0 0 

Ra1es Claw-Back Reserve 25a/25b 0 

Adjustments in relad011 to Short-term compensated absences 11J 137,743 :roa,5so 

Adjustments in relation to Lessor Arrangements 46,350 3l\.000 

l-andfill Regulations Reserve Adjustment 25al25b 0 0 

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve Adjustment 25al25b 0 0 

Amounts not Included In the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be 
Included when determining the Movement on the General 
Fund Balance for the year 

Statutory Provision for the financing of Capital Investment 25al25b {1,142,760) (1,049,811) 

Employers contributions payable to the NILGOSC and 
retirement benefits payable direct to pensi011ers 19b (1 3,248,000) (12,326,000) 

(13,002,664 10,739,926 

3b Net transfers (to)/from statutory and other earmarked reserves: 

2014115 2014115 2013/14 2013114 
£ £ £ £ 

Capital Fund 
Interest 0 0 
Other 25a/25b (1 555 932) {1,555,932) (6000 0001 {6,000,000) 
Renewal and Repairs Fund 
Interest 0 0 
Other 25al25b 0 0 0 0 
Other Funds and earmarked reserves 
Interest (2,898) (6,897) 

Other 2511125b 520 784 517 886 1100 0001 1106 897) 
11,038,04151 111,106,897) 



Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Cost of Services on Continuing Operations 

4a Miscellaneous powers to make payments 
Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 enables 
District Councils to spend up to the aggregate of the product of 0.0596p in the 
pound on the rateable value of non-domestic hereditaments, and the product of a 
rate of 0.00082p in the pound on the rateable value of domestic hereditaments for 
the benefit of all the inhabitants in their district, or part of their district, on activities 
not specifically authorised by other powers. This would allow for £307,089 in 
2014/15 (£308,140 in 2013/14). The actual expenditure during 2014/15 amounted 
to £299,612 (£271 ,600 in 2013/14). 

2014/15 2013/14 
£ £ 

Mary_ Peters Trust 0 5 000 
City of Belfast Youth Concert Band 5,000 0 
Common Purpose Belfast {Bursaries) 6,000 6,000 
Redevelopment of Northern Ireland Hos__Qice 250,000 250,000 
Fuel Stamp Scheme 7,600 7,600 
Commonwealth Games 15,000 0 
Cinemagic 6,500 0 
Nl Street League Funding 4,400 0 
International Men's Day 5,112 
Harlandic Male Voice Choir 0 3,000 

299,612 271,600 

4b External Audit Fees 

The Council has incurred the following costs relating to the annual audit of the 
Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and other services provided by 
the Councils external auditors. The cost for 2014/15 is an estimate of the external 
audit fee. 

2014/15 2013/14 

£ £ 
External Audit Fees Council 80,000 75,059 
External Audit Fees STC 2,000 1 941 
Under (Over} accrual from previous year 12,669 (2.635) 
Other Fees- National Fraud Initiative 2,112 0 

96,781 74365 

There were no other fees payable in respect of any other services provided by the 
appointed auditor over and above those described above. 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Cost of Services on Continuing Operations (Continued) 

5 Operating and Finance Leases 

Council as Lessor: 

5a Finance Leases (Council as lessor) 

The Council has leased out property to a local bank on a finance lease with a remaining term of 64 years. 

The present value of lease payments receivable under the finance lease arrangements is recognised as a 
receivable and included in both short and long term debtors. The difference between the gross amount receivable 
and the present value of the amounts receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. 

2015 2014 
£ £ 

Long Term Debtors 
Finance leases-gross receivables 2,920,050 2,432,000 
Less-Unearned finance income (2,294,023' (1,806,708' 
Less-Unguaranteed residual value of 0 0 
I property 
Net present value 626 027 625,292 

Short Term Debtors 
Finance leases-gross receivables 46,350 38,000 
Less-Unearned finance income (45,845) (37,098\ 
Less-Unguaranteed residual value of 
lorooertv 0 0 
Net present value 505 902 

Gross receivables from finance leases 

No later than 1 year 46,350 38,000 
Later than 1 year and no rater than 5 
vears 185 400 152,000 
Later than 5 years 2,734,650 2,280,000 
Total gross receivables 2 966,400 2,470 000 
Less-Unearned future finance income on 
finance leases (2,339,868) {1,843,806) 
Less-Unguaranteed residual value of 
property 0 0 
Net Investment In finance leases 626,532 626194 

The net Investment In finance leases may be analysed as follows: 

2015 2014 
£ £ 

No later than 1 year 505 902 
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 0 0 
lvears 
Later than 5 years 626,027 625,292 
Total gross receivables 626,532 626194 
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The unguaranteed residual values of the assets leased under finance leases at the end of the year are estimated 
at £0 (Previous year £0) 

The accumulated allowance for uncollectable minimum lease payments receivable is £0 (comparative year £0) 

No contingent rents were recognised as receivable by the Council. 

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term. The average interest 
rate contracted is approximately 7.32% (comparative year 5.92%) 

5b Operating Leases (Council as lessor) 

The Council, in accordance with its statutory and discretionary responsibilities, leases out property and equipment 
under operating leases for the following purposes: 

-for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and community centres 

- for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for small local businesses 

- any other purposes 

Rental income recognised in the C?mprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the current year amounts 
to £6,577,583 (previous year: £6,433,539). No contingent rents were recognised. 

The lease contracts are all non-cancellable and do not include an extension option. The lease terms are between 
1 month and 999 years. Future minimum lease income is set out below: 

2015 2014 
Land and Vehicles, plant Land and Vehicles, plant 
buildings and equipment buildings and equipment 

Restated 
£ £ £ 

Minimum lease rentals receivable: 
No later than 1 year 5 874 939 0 5 361,528 
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 19,734,826 0 18,281,726 
vears 
Later than 5 years 379 974 821 0 346 723 333 

405 584.586 0 370.366.587 

The comparative figures for Land Buildings have been amended for future minimum lease income totalling 
(£77 ,1 05,339}. 

The assets leased by the Council to third parties are included in the following categories of Property, Plant and 
Equipment with carrying values of: 

2015 2014 

£ 

0 
0 

0 

Jl 

Land and Vehicles, plant Land and Vehicles, plant 
buildings and equipment buildings and equipment 

£ £ £ £ 

Cost 74 200 000 0 74 700 000 0 
Accumulated depreciation and 0 0 0 0 
impairments at 1 A_pril 
Depreciation charQe for the vear 0 0 0 0 
Impairments 2 800 000 0 (600 000} 0 
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Council as Lessee: 

Sc Finance Leases (Council as lessee) 

The Council has no lessee finance leases during 2014/15 {2013/14 £Nil) 

Sd Operating Leases (Council as lessee) 

The Council has acquired its office copiers and printers by entering into operating leases with typical lives of 5 
years. The Council is also leasing a number of office buildings with lease terms up to 16 years and vehicles with 
lease terms of 3 years. 

The expenditure charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in 
relation to these leases was: 

2015 2014 
land and Vehicles, plant Land and Vehicles, plant 
buildings and equipment buildings and equipment 

Restated 

£ £ £ £ 

Minimum lease oavments 1 110 716 207 022 1 093 927 18 601 
Contingent rentals 0 0 0 0 
Less: Sublease payments receivable 0 0 0 0 

1110.716 207 022 1 093 927 18 601 

The comparative figures have been restated to take account of printers and photocopiers charges £18,601. 

No sub-lease payments or contingent rent payments were made or received. No sublease income is expected as 
all assets held under operating lease agreements are used exclusively be the Council. 

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operating leases in future years are set out 
below: 

2015 2014 
Land and Vehicles, plant Land and Vehicles, plant 
buildings and equipment buildings and equipment 

Restated Restated 

£ £ £ £ 
Minimum lease rentals payable: 
No later than 1 year 1 253 687 471 274 1 048 651 13 024 
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 4,791,111 742,357 3,869,439 9,038 
'vears 
Later than 5 years 1 618 130 0 2 605 400 0 

7.662 928 1 213 631 7.543.490 22 062 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Cost of Services on Continuing Operations (Continued) 

6 Employee Costs and Members' Allowances 

6a Staff Costs 

2014/15 2013/14 
£ £ 

Salaries and wages 66,856,878 66,608,006 
Employers National Insurance 4,650,922 4,749,233 
Employers pension costs 11,814,613 11,495,431 
Total 83,322,413 82,852,670 

In addition, agency costs during the year amounted to £3,728,405 (2013/14 
£4,377,867.64). 

The Council's current contribution rate to the NILGOSC scheme is 20%. At the 
last actuarial valuation, dated 31 March 2013, the Fund's assets as a whole 
were sufficient to meet 91% (201 0: 82%) of the liabilities accrued up to that date. 

6b Average Number of Employees - where FTE represents fulltime equivalent 
employees 

2014/15 2013/14 
FTE FTE 

Environmental services 840 828 
Leisure services 600 656 
Other 940 911 
Total Number 2,380 2,395 

Actual Actual 
Numbers Numbers 

Full-time numbers employed 2,022 2,281 
Part-time numbers employed 299 329 
Total Number 2,321 2,610 

On 1 January 2015, 316 employees transferred to Greenwich Leisure Limited 
(GLL) as part of the Leisure Transformation Programme. 
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Sc Senior Employees' Remuneration 

2014115 2013/14 

£50,001 to £60,000 34 37 
£60,001 to £70,000 5 6 
£70,001 to £80,000 10 11 
£80,001 to £90,000 1 1 
£90,001 to £100,000 3 4 
£100,001 to 110,000 0 0 
£110,001 to £120,000 0 0 
£120,001 to £130,000 0 0 
£130,001 to £140,000 0 0 
£140,001 to £150,000 0 1 
over £150,001 0 0 
Total Number 53 60 

6d Members' Allowances 

During the year Members' allowances (paid under Part 3, Sections 31 to 36 of 
the Local Government Finance Act (NI) 2011 ), including Employer's costs, 
totalled £586,482 (2013/14 £830,556) and are as follows: 

2014/15 2013/14 
£ £ 

Salaries 0 0 
Basic allowance 302,914 484,561 
Policing & Community Safety Partnership 16,860 20,820 
Allowance 
Mayor's & Deputy Mayor's Allowance 41 ,050 40,883 
High Sheriffs Allowance 7,812 5,500 
Dependents' carers allowance 0 0 
Statutory Transition Committee Allowances 17,168 14,175 
Employer costs 21,194 29,843 
Mileage 17,277 27,479 
Conferences and Courses 22,880 23,198 
Travel Costs 11,497 18,334 
Subsistence 6,593 8,429 
Special Responsibility Allowances 82,654 80,401 
Telephone Rental & mobile 11,509 7,935 
Miscellaneous Costs 2,674 1,398 
Severance Payments * 24,400 67,600 

Total 586,482 830,556 

* Severance payments shown above are made under the Local Government 
(Severance Payments to Councillors) Regulations (NI) 2013 and are fully funded 
by the Northern Ireland Executive. 

Page 47 



Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

6e Exit Packages 

During the year the Council agreed a number of exit packages. Total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below. 

Exit package cost band (including special Number of compulsory Number of other departures Total number of exit Total cost of exit packages In 
payments) redundancies agreed packages by cost band each band 

2014/15 2013/14 2014115 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 

£0 to £20 000 0 0 35 0 35 0 396948 0 
£20 001 to £40 000 0 0 21 0 21 0 577,026 0 
£40 001 to £60 000 0 0 10 1 10 1 453 943 41 904 
£60 001 to £80 000 0 0 6 0 6 0 401.803 0 
£80 001 to £100 000 0 0 2 1 2 1 186149 92423 
£100 001 to £150 000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
over £150 000 0 0 2 0 2 0 578 242 0 

Total 0 0 76 2 76 2 2,594,1~~ 134,327 
~ 

~-- ---
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

7 Other Operating Expenditure 

7a Surplus/Deficit on Non-Current Assets (excl Investment Properties) 

2014/15 2013/14 
£ £ 

~roeeeds from sale 
/2 748 600 /30 9831 

Carrying amount of non-current assets sold (excl 
Investment ~ropertles) 

2 733 036 24 873 

(15,564 (6,110 

7b Other Operating Income/Expenditure 

2014115 2013/14 
£ £ 

Income 0 0 
I ExPenditure 0 0 

0 0 

Summary 
Other Operating Gross Income (15,564) (6,110) 
Other Operating Gross Expenditure 0 0 

Summary of Other Operating expenditure: 

2014/15 2013/14 
£ £ 

(Surplus)/Deficlt on Non-Current Assets (15,564) (6,110) 

Other Operating Income/Expenditure 0 0 

Total Other Operating expenditure 
(15,564) (6,110) 

8 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

Be Interest Payable and Similar Charges 

2014115 2013/14 
£ £ 

Leeselhlre ourchese Interest 0 0 
Bank Interest 0 0 
Loan Interest 1 168 976 1 450 493 
Other Interest (please speclfvl 0 0 

11&6 976 1450 493 



Bb Interest and Investment Income 

2014115 
£ 

Bank Interest 0 

Investment income on Fund Balances 

Capital Funcl 0 
Reoalrs & Renewals Fund 0 
Other Funds 0 

Other Investment income (338 9071 
(338 9071 

Be Pensions Interest costs 

2014/15 
£ 

Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability 3,821,000 
(asset} 

3 621 000 

Bd 

Surplusi(Deflclt) on trading operetlons 

2014/15 
£ 

Income from tracling 0 
IExoenditure 0 
I {SI!_rp_lus)IDeficlt for the vear 0 

Be Income, ExpenditUre and changes In Fair Value of Investment Properties 

Income/ExpenditUre from Investment 
Properties: 
Income lncludlna rental income 
Expenditure 
De-recognition In nalaUon to amounts written off 

Net Income from Investment pro~rties 
Surplusldeflclt on sale of Investment 
Properties: 
Proceeds from sale 

Carrying amount of investment properties sold 
(Surplus)ldeficlt on sale of Investment Properties: 

Changes In Fair Value of Investment Properties 

Summary 
Financing and Investment Gross Income 
Financing and Investment Gross Expenditure 

2014/15 

£ 
8 577 583 

376 740 

0 
(6,200,843) 

0 

0 

0 

(7,350,0001 
(13 550 843 

(14,266,490) 
5,164,716 
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2013114 
£ 
0 

0 
0 
0 

(383198 
(383198 

2013114 
£ 

5,095,000 

5 095 000 

2013114 
£ 
0 
0 
0 

2013114 

£ 
IB 433 539 

371 981 

0 
(6,061,558 

0 

0 

0 

500,000 
15 561 558 

(6,816,737) 
7,417,474 



Summary of Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure: 

2014115 2013/14 
£ £ 

Interest Payable ar~d Similar Charges 1,166,976 1,450,493 

lr~terest and Investment Income (338,907) (383,198) 
Pensions Interest cost 3,621,000 5,095,000 
Surplusi(Oeficit) on trading operations 0 0 
Changes in Fair Value of lnvestme"t Properties (7 ,350,000) 500,000 
Other lnvestme"t Income (6,200,843) (6,061,558) 

Total Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure (9,101,n4) 600,737 

2014115 2013/14 
Gross Expenditure Gross Income Net Cost Grose Gross Net Cost 

Exoendlture Income 
£ £ £ £ £ £ 

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 1,168,976 0 1,166,976 1,450,493 0 1450 493 
Interest and Investment Income 0 338,907 (338,907 0 383,198 (383,198) 
Pensions Interest cost 3,621,000 0 3,621,000 5,095,000 0 5,095,000 
Surplusi(Oefrcit) on trading operations 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties 0 7,350,000 (7,350,000 500,000 0 500,000 
Other Investment Income 378,740 s.sn.S83 (6,200,843 371,981 8,433,539 (6,061,5581 

11,11>4,/lli 14,2tili,4liU (li,1U', 741 ,4' ,474 6,111ti,737 6\JQ,7l7 



Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

9 Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income 

9a Revenue Grants 

General 
Other 
Other 
Other 

9b Capital Grants and Donated Assets-Applied 

Government & Other Grants-Conditions met and applied in year 
Government & Other Grants-Transfer from receipts in advance 
Donated Assets-Conditions met 
Donated Assets-Transfer from donated assets creditor 

9c Capital Grants-Unapplied 

Government & Other Grants-Conditions met and not applied in y_ear 
Other 

9d District Rates 

Current vear 
Finalisatlon - previous vear 
Transitional Relief 
Finalisatlon - other vears 

Summary of Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income: 

District Rates Income 

Revenue Grants 
Capital Grants and Contributions 

Total Taxation and Non-specific_ Grant Income 
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2014/15 
£ 

4 629 062 
0 
0 
0 

4,629,062 

2014/15 
£ 

13 040 392 
60669 

0 
0 

13,101,061 

2014/15 
£ 

0 
0 

0 

2014/15 
£ 

134 536 548 
0 
0 
0 

134,536,548 

2014/15 
£ 

134,536,548 

4,629,062 
13,101,061 

152,266,671 

2013/14 
£ 

4 630 117 
0 
0 
0 

4,630,117 

2013/14 
£ 

5 332 751 
681,580 

0 
0 

6,014,331 

2013/14 
£ 

0 
0 

0 

2013/14 
£ 

131 354 809 
0 
0 
0 

131,354,809 

2013/14 
£ 

131,354,809 

4,630,117 
6,014,331 

141,999,257 



a:senast t.;lty t,;ouncn 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

lOa Long-Tenn Assets Note- Current Year 

Property, Plant & Equipment (PP&E) 
land Bullclklgs lnlraslruclun! landlil SiCa Vehldea, Planl Community PP&EUndef Surplus_ TotaiPP&E ln-tnlent Intangible TOTAL 

Alsela & Equipmenl Assets Construdlon Assets Propertlea lbaets 

1 1 1 1 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Coat or Veluatlon 

All Apdl2014 89,783,368 271,978,131 0 0 34,6113,172 193 18,624,290 3,207,465 418,274,619 77,015,000 18,700,000 510,089,819 
Adjusllll8flls between ros1/value & 
depn!dallonlimpalnnent 0 (1,192,625) 0 0 (1, 718,891) 0 0 0 (2,111,318 0 1,7111,1191 (1,112,625) 

Adjusled opening balance 89,783,368 270,783,508 0 0 32,964,481 193 18,624,200 3 ,207,465 413,383,303 77,015,000 111,411,881 501,878,914 
Additions (Nola 11) 20,6119 940,541 0 0 4,089,182 741,834 19,708,082 16,205 25,514,513 0 0 25,514,513 

Donations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Revaluation Increases/decreases lo 
Revaluation Reserve (67,287) 14,1120,442 0 0 0 0 0 550,997 15,314,152 0 0 15,314,152 

Revaluation lllcreasesldecreases to 
Surplus or Delldl 011 the Provision of 

~ 
SeiVIces (408,046) 1,033,999 0 0 (741,831) 0 31 ,497 (82,3811 7,350,000 0 7,267,619 
OeteCOgnillon • Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 (22,000) (22,0001 0 0 (22,000) 
Oerec:ognillon • Other 0 c 0 0 (11,212) 0 (10,753) 0 (16,965) 0 0 (18,9e5) 
Reda$sllcallons & Transfers 200,000 426,511 0 0 528,349 

~ 
(1,707,209) 385,300 (167,049) 0 117,049 0 

Redasslled to Held lor Sale (140,000) (1 ,555,000) 0 0 0 0 (1,913,463) (3,601,463) 0 0 (3,1011,413) 
Reclassified from Held lor Sale 0 c 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Adjustment-landfill Deferred Cllalge 
(Note 18) 0 c 0 0 0 Cl 0 0 0 0 0 0 
At 31 Man:h 2015 89,370,704 286,549,999 0 0 37,575,800 196 34,612,410 2,256,001 450,315,110 84,445,000 11,515,740 553,395,150 

Oepqclatlon and lmpalnnent 
All Apnl2014 0 1,192,825 0 0 24,082,849 0 0 0 25,275,474 0 18,700,000 41,975,474 
Adjustments between ros11value & 
depredallonlimpalnnenl 0 (1, 192,625) 0 0 (1,450,202) 0 0 0 12.142.1127) 0 1,450,202 (1,192,625) 

Adjusted opening balance 0 0 0 0 22,632,647 0 0 0 22,632,847 0 11,150,202 40,7112,849 

Depredation Charge 0 8,131,809 0 0 1,851,456 0 0 0 9,913,085 0 180,979 10,144,044 

Depredation written out 011 Revaluation 
ResllfV8 0 (7, 192,302) 0 0 0 
OepRdallon wrillen out on Revaluation 

0 0 0 (7,112,302) 0 0 (7 ,192,3021 

taken to Sutplus « oerodl oo the 
Provision of SeMces 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

tmpannent lossesiAMlfSals to 
Revatuatlon Reserve 0 0 ( 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Impairment lossetlteversals to 5ufplus 

~ ~ ~ ~ 
or Defldl oolhe Provision of SeMces (939,307) 0 0 

~ 
(!139,307) 0 0 (139,307) 

()erea)gnillon • Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Oererognlllon • Other ~ 0 0 0 (6.212) 

~ ~ ~ 
(8,212) 0 0 (&,2121 

Rec:lassillcatlo & Transfers 0 ( 0 0 ~ 0 0 0 0 
Ellmlnaled 011 tedas$ilication to Held for 
Sale 0 ( 0 ~ 0 0 0 ~ 0 0 0 0 
At3t Man:h 2015 0 0 0 ~ 24,477,891 0 0 0 24,477,891 0 tl,311,111 42,719,072 

Net Sook Value 

At31 Man:h 2015 1111,370,704 218,54t,H9 0 0 13,097,101 198 34,812,410 2,2511,001 425,817,21t 84,445,000 274,559 510,608,771 
At 31 Man:h 201 .. 19,713,361 270,713,508 0 0 10,~.323 183 18,824,290 3,207,465 390,H9,145 77,015,000 0 461,094,145 
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Intangible Assets 
Intangible Assets relate to landfil closure costs (net book value £nil, gross cost before amoflisatlon £18.7m) and ptlfthased licensed software and related implementation costs (net book vahle £275k, gross cost before 
amortisation £1 ,888k). 

Investment properties 
There were no additions in lhe year In relation to acquisitions and enhancemenls. 

ValuaUons 
The Council is not aware of any malarial changes In freehold and leasehold properties. The land and buildings assets held by the Council were originally valued as at 1st April1997 by the Valuations and lands Agency, ln 
8CCOfdance with the statements of asset valuation pradlce-and guidance notes of the Royal Institute of Chaltered SIIIVI!)'OIS. The Council is operating a rolling programme for it's revaluation of land and buildings with 
llppiOldmately 25% of these being dlscreelly revalued by phy$1cal inspedlon each year and the remainder being discreetly revalued by desktop exercise. 

In the 2014/15 year all assets have been valued as at 31 March 2015. The revaluation was earned out by land and Property SenricesAgency. 

Capital Commitments 
A total or 14 capital contracts with a vakle or over £100,000 were entered into during the period wilh a total commitment value of £60,371,881 . 

Effects or Changes In EsUmates 
There were no material changes In accounting estimates for property, plant and equipment during the period. 

lmpalnnents 
There were no material impairments for property, plant and equipment during the period. 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

1Gb Long-Term Assets Nota • Comparative Year 

P,_,..,, PIIH1t & PP&El 
Land a.-.gs Restated lnltallludtn Landll Sile Vehicles, Plant Cotm'Uiily PP&Et.Jnder Surplus Total PP&E Investment Intangible TOTAL 

Assats & Equipment Assets Conslrudlon Asseb Properties Asaets 
Restated Restated 

' ' l ' [ t t t t £ t 
Coat orVaiW~Uon 
All Aprtl2013 811,115,006 258,598,643 0 0 31,8D3,770 189 15,020,045 10,000,000 404,127,153 77,511,000 11,700,000 4t8,122,153 
Adjuslmenta between COSI/value & 
depredallonlirnpUmenl ~5 0 0 0 0 0 188,1!48 2 118,1<45 0 0 118,145 

Adjusted opening balance 89,115,001 258,598,643 0 0 3!,8D3,770 189 15,188,893 10,000,002 404,7!18,411 77,111,000 11,700,000 4H,ot1,4H 
Additions (Nola 11) 17,907 1,709,621 0 0 2,258,388 2,875,591 5,657,748 129,270 12,141,503 0 0 12,141,503 

Donallons 0 0 0 0 410,1100 0 0 0 410,000 0 0 410,000 

Revaluation lllcreasesldecnlases 
to Revaluation Reserve 113,777 9,525,131 0 0 0 0 0 ~1,1!49,999) 7,7 .. ,10t 0 0 7,718,tot 

Revaluation incnrasesldoawases 
to SurpkiS or Defic:it on the 
Plll'iision or SflfVices 687,985 2,077,488 0 0 0 ~4 , 828,305) 0 ~3,722,608) (5,781,451) (500,000) 0 (1,215,451) 
Oen!cognilion • Disposals 

~ ~ 0 
~ 

(1,256,315 : 0 0 (1,258,315) c ~ (1,258,315 
llelecognitian • 01hef (] (28,014 (518,306 0 1141,320) c 0 (M1,320 
Redaslilic8Uans & Transfera ~99.e24 65,248 0 ( 1,405,36! 1,952,718 ~3,704,045 380,338 0 ! 0 a 
Radassilied to Held lor Sale 151,658) ~ 0 : ~ ~ : (1,788,540) 11,131,191 0 11,1311,191 
Rl!dassilied 1n>m Held lor Sale ~ 0 57,000 57,ooci ~ 0 57,000 

AdjustmenHandlill Oelemld 
Chalge (Nola 18) 0 0 0 0 c 0 ( 0 0 0 0 0 
At 31 March 2014 89 783.368 271,976,131 0 0 34,1583,172 193 16,624,290 3,207,465 411,274,11, 77,095,000 11,700,000 510,01t,ll' 

DepnclaUon and l"'fNNInnent 
All Aprtl2013 0 490,212 0 0 23,022,815 0 0 0 2),113,027 0 11,700,000 40,213,027 
Adjuslmenls between COSVValue & 

~ 0 0 0 0 0 D 0 0 0 0 0 0 

~sled opening balance D 490,212 0 0 23,022,815 0 0 0 23,513,027 0 18,700,000 40,213,027 

Oepnldation Clwlle 0 7,705,401 0 0 2,291476 0 0 0 t,H1,171 0 0 t,!J91,177 

Oepnldallon wntten out on 
Revaluation Reserve 0 (7,747,200) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (7,747,200) 0 0 (7,747 ,200) 
Depredation written out on 
Revaluation taken to Surplus or 
Oelidl on the Ptovision or Servic;es (] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

lmpamlent louftlntvetaals lo 
Revaluation Resente 0 744,212 0 0 0 0 0 0 744,212 0 0 744,212 
lrnpaimMnt~to 

SUrplus or Oeficil on the PIUYIIIon 

~ : : : c : : ~ orSeMtes 0 0 0 0 
Oenlcognilion - Otsposals (1,231,442) 0 (1,231,442 0 : (1,231,4421 
Dtnalgni1lon - other 

~ 
[ [ 

~ ~ c 
~ 

0 : 0 I 
Radassilication& & Transfers ( [ D 0 0 I 0 
Elimnaled on llldaiSilicalion to 
Held lor Sale 0 0 0 0 0 D ( 0 0 0 0 0 
Al31 M•rch 2014 0 1,192,625 0 0 24,082,8411 D 0 0 25,275474 0 11,700,000 41,175,474 

Net Book V•lue 
All! March 2014 11,71.:1,318 270,713,501 0 0 10,100,323 113 11,&24,2to 3,207,415 3to,tH,145 77,095,000 0 411,0N,145 
At 31 M•rch 2013 11,111,oot 258,101,431 0 0 1,870,115 111 15,020,045 10,000,000 311,114121 77,595,000 0 451,709,128 
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Intangible AISets 
Intangible Aueta relata solely to landlil closure costs. 

Investment properties 
Tllere were no additions In the year ln relallon lo acqulsillons and enhancement•. 

ValuaUons 
T11e COWICI Is not aware of lillY malarial c:hanges In frvehold ~leasehold properties. T11e land~ buildings assets held by the Council ware originally valued as at 1st April1997 by the Vatuatlons and lands Agency,ln 
acconlance with the stalemenls of ~I valuation pradlce and guidance note• of the Royallnslilule of Challlftd Surveyon. lhe COWICI Is operating a rollng progmmme for It's revaluation of land and buildings with 
approximately 25% of these being disaeetly revalued by physical Inspection e~ year and \he remainder being dlsaeeUy revalued by desktop exen:lse. 

In the 20t3114 yea- al IISMII have betm valued as at Jl Mard12014. T11e reYIWation was canled 0111 by land~ Property Selvlces Agency. 

Capital Commitments 
A tolal of 11 capital contracts wilh a value or over £100,000 were entered Into during the period with a lola! commHment value of £10,610,286. 

Effects of Ch~ngn In Eatlmates 
Tl1ent ware no matelial changes In II<XOUIUlg estimates for propeny, plant and equipment during the period. 

Impairments 
There were no material Impairments for propeny, plan! and equipment during the period. 

... .. 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

Heritage Assets 

Works of Pottery Total 
Art Civic Items Machinery Assets 

Cost or Valuation £ £ £ £ 

At 1 April 2013 1,803,934 1,101,644 0 2,905,578 
Additions 52,060 41,898 0 93,958 
Disposals 0 0 0 0 
Derecognition - Other 0 0 0 0 
Revaluation lncreases/{Decreases) to Revaluation Reserve 0 0 0 0 
Revaluation lncreases/{Decreases) to Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 42,929 0 0 42,929 
Impairment {Losses)/Reversals recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 0 0 0 0 
Impairment {Lpsses)/Reversals recognised in Surplus or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 0 0 0 0 

At 31 March 2014 1,898,923 1,143,542 0 3,042,465 

Cost or Valuation 

At 1 April2014 1,898,923 1,143,542 0 3,042,465 
Additions 0 0 0 0 
Disposals 0 0 0 0 
Derecognition - Other 0 0 0 0 
Revaluation lncreases/(Decreases) to Revaluation Reserve 0 215,200 0 215,200 
Revaluation lncreases/(Decreases) to Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 0 0 0 0 
Impairment (Losses)/Reversals recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 0 0 0 0 
Impairment (Losses)/Reversals recognised in Surplus or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 0 0 0 0 

At 31 March 2015 1,898,923 1,358,742 0 3,257,665 

Works of Art and Civic Items 
The Council's collection of Heritage Assets (Works of Art and Civic Items) is reported in the Balance 
Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market values, or if it is not possible to obtain a 
valuation, they are measured at historic cost less depreciation, amortisation or impariment losses. 
Insurance valuations are updated on a periodic basis. On the occasion that no cost can be accurately 
measured for an item, it is held on the balance sheet at the value of £1 for stewardship purposes. There 
are currently 151 of these items recorded by Belfast City Council. 
Summary information on Heritage Assets has been provided for transactions in the 2014/15 and 2013/14 
financial years. Detailed information relating to transactions has not been included for prior years as it 
would not be practical to do so and there is little value added for users of the accounts. 

Additions of Heritage Assets 
There were no additions to heritage assets in the year. 

Disposals in 2014/15 
There were no disposals of Heritage Assets during 2014/15. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

1 Od Assets Held for Sale 

At 31 March 2015 Assets Held for Assets Held TOTAL 
Sale-Current for Sale-Non-

current 

£ £ 
Cost or Valuation 
At 1 April2014 4,497,574 0 4,497,574 

Transferred from Non-Current Assets during 
year 1,913,462 1,695,001 3,608,463 

Revaluation increases/decreases taken to 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (2,200,000) 0 (2,200,000) 

Derecognition - Disposals (2,711,036) 0 (2,711 ,036) 
Derecognition- Other 0 0 0 

Reclassified from Current Assets Held for Sale 
to non current Assets Held for Sale 0 0 0 
Transferred to Property, Plant & Equipment 
during year 0 0 0 
At 31 March 2015 1,500,000 1,695,001 3,195,001 

Impairment 
At 1 April2014 0 0 0 

Impairment losses/reversals taken to Surplus 
or Deficit on the Provision of Services 0 0 0 
Derecognition - Disposals 0 0 0 
Derecognition - Other 0 0 0 

Reclassified from Current Assets Held for Sale 
to non current Assets Held for Sale 0 0 0 

Transferred to Property, Plant & Equipment 
during year 0 0 0 
At 31 March 2015 0 0 0 

Net Book Value 
At 31 March 2015 1,500,000 1,695,001 3,195,001 

At 31 March 2014 4,497,574 0 4,497,574 
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The Council intends to dispose of property at Maysfield and at McClure Street, Belfast. 
All of these have been agreed by Committee and actively marketed. 

The gains on assets classified to held for sale and sold during the year was £5,563 (2014 
£0). The Council disposed of four pieces of land, situated at Glen Road (site B), Colin 
Glen and Cliftonville Playing Fields. 

c omparat1ve y ear 
At 31 March 2014 Assets Held for Assets Held TOTAL 

Sale-Current for Sale-Non-
current 

f. £ 

Cost or Valuation 
At 1 April 2013 0 3,257,000 3,257,000 
Transferred from Non-Current Assets during 
year 1,822,573 0 1,822,573 

Revaluation increases/decreases taken to 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (525,000) 0 (525,000) 
Derecognition - Disposals 0 0 0 
Oerecognition - Other 0 0 0 

Reclassified from Current Assets Held for Sale 
to non current Assets Held for Sale 3,200,000 (3,200,000) 0 

Transferred to to Property, Plant & Equipment 
during year 1 (57,000) (56,999) 
At 31 March 2014 4,497,574 0 4,497,574 

Impairment 
At 1 April2013 0 0 0 

Impairment losses/reversals taken to Surplus 
or Deficit on the Provision of Services 0 0 0 
Oerecognition - Disposals 0 0 0 
Oerecognition - Other 0 0 0 

Transferred to to Property, Plant & Equipment 
during year 0 0 0 
At 31 March 2014 0 0 0 

Net Book Value 
At 31 March 2014 4,497,574 0 4,497,574 
At 31 March 2013 0 3,257,000 3,257,000 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

1 Oe Investment Properties 

The following items of income and expense have been recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 

2014115 2013/14 
£ £ 

Rental income from investment DroDertv 6.577 563 6 433 539 
Direct operatino exDenses arislno from investment DroDertv (376 740 (371 981 

Net gain/(loss) 6,200 843 6,061,558 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

11 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

2014/15 2013/14 
£ £ 

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 31,978,292 31,992,862 

Caoitallnvestment 
Property, Plant and Eauipment 25 514 513 12 648 503 
Investment Properties 0 0 
lntanaible Assets 0 0 
Heritaae Assets 0 93 956 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 0 0 

Sources of Finance 
Capital Receipts 0 (42 708) 
Government Grants and Other Contributions (13 101 061) (6 014 331) 
Transfers from Earmarked Reserves (8 031 207) 1 049 611 

Sums set aside from Revenue: 
Direct Revenue Contributions (7 043 243} (6 699 992) 
Minimum Revenue Provision (1 142,760} (1 049611) 

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 28,174,534 31,978,292 

Explanation of Movements In Year 

lncrease/(decrease} in underlying need to borrow (3 803 758) (14 570} 
Assets acquired under finance leases 0 0 
Assets acquired under PFIIPPP contracts 0 0 

lncrease/(decrease) In Capital Financing Requirement (3,803,758) (14,570) 
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12 Future Capital Commitments 

The Council has an ongoing programme of capital works. The estimated cost of the projects which have completed 
a full business case that has been approved by Committee are as follows: 

Gross Cost Grant Aid Net Cost 
£ £ £ 

Schemes underway 185,826,211 78,954,322 106,871,889 
Other Commitments 36,652,804 12,841,014 23,811,790 

Total 222,479,015 91,795,336 130,683,679 

Total expenditure of£10,302,954 has been incurred against these projects in the year ended 31 March 2015. 

13 Inventories 

2014/15 2013/14 
£ £ 

Central Stores 288,677 309,031 
Other 0 0 
Total 288 677 309 031 

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in 'services' amounted to £616,220 (2014: £618,712). 
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14 Debtors 

2014/15 2013/14 

£ £ 
14a Long Term Debtors 

Employee car loans 60,458 60,714 
Finance lease debtors-Note 5c) 626,027 625,292 
Trade debtors 586,491 854,287 
NIHE Loans 6,434,700 8,283,840 

Total Long Term Debtors 7,707,676 9,824,133 

14b Short Term Debtors 

Government Departments 934,099 1,070,048 
Other Councils 71,455 158,934 
Employee car loans 39,294 41,171 
Grants 8,310,657 7,488,579 
Value Added Tax 2,913,692 994,795 
Prepayments 3,793,692 1 '176,437 
Finance lease debtors-Note 5c) 505 902 
Other 2,658,970 1,290,188 
Rates Finalisation 4,706,640 1,563,000 
Trade receivables 1,772,219 1 648,782 
Impairment loss - Trade receivables (375, 173) (703,456) 

Total Short Term Debtors 24,826,050 14,729,380 

Total Debtors 32,533,727 24,553,513 
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15a Short Term Borrowing 

2014/15 
£ 

Loans re-payable within one year 3 073 373 

Total Short Term Borrowing 3,073,373 

15b Long Term Borrowing 

2014/15 
£ 

Between 1 and 2 years 0 
Between 2 and 5 years 6,000,000 
Between 5 and 10 vears 12.064,671 
In more than 10 years 0 
Government Loans Fund 20 084 871 

Total Borrowing 23,158,244 

Both the short-term and long-term borrowings have been analysed by maturity date. 

Interest rates on Government Loans range between 3.52% and 11.125%. 

The total £23,158,244 above relates to Government Loans Fund. 

16a Short Term Creditors 
2014/15 

£ 

Government Deoartments 115 631 
Other Councils 866 
Remuneration due to emplovees 30,643 
Accumulated Absences 1 262148 
Receipts in advance• 2 397 789 
NILGOSC 71443 
H M Revenue & Customs 1 308 940 
Other 19169 922 
Total Short Term Creditors 24,357,382 

• This amount Includes £513,390 (2013/14 £556,580) or third party ticket Income. 

16b Long Term Creditors 

2014/15 
£ 

Other creditors falling due after more than one year 

Government Deoartments 0 
Other Councils 0 
Public corporations and tradina funds 0 
Bodies extemal to general aovemment 0 
Rates clawback 0 
Other 0 
Total Long Term Creditors 0 

Total Creditors 24,357,382 
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2013/14 
£ 

0 

0 

2013/14 
£ 

3,193,696 
4,000.000 
8,000,000 
6,743,522 

23L937 418 

23,937,418 

2013/14 
£ 

166 448 
19 307 
68138 

1124,405 
2,744 668 

149 739 
1 542 449 

13 429 519 
19,244,673 

2013/14 
£ 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

19,244,673 
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17 Provisions 

Single status 
Election expenses 
Landfill closure 
ReorQanisation 
Claims manaQement 
Other 

Current Provisions 
Long Tenn Provisions 

y Comparat ve ear 

Single status 
Election expenses 
Landfill closure 
Reorganisation 
Claims management 
Other 

Current Provisions 
Long Tenn Provisions 

Provisions-Additional Disclosure 

At 1 April 
2014 

£ 
0 
0 

6,057 989 
0 

1 336 726 
0 

7,394,715 

6,042,717 
1,351,998 
7,394,715 

At 1 April 
2013 

£ 
0 
0 

5 873 460 
0 

1 217 402 
0 

7,090,862 

5,457,924 
1,632,938 
7,090,862 

Increase In 
provision 

during year 
£ 
0 
0 

1 525 927 
0 

1 244 021 
0 

2,769,948 

1,244,021 
1,525.927 
2,769,948 

Increase In 
provision 

during year 
£ 
0 
0 
0 
0 

119 324 
0 

119,324 

119,324 
0 

119,324 

Utilised 
during year 

£ 
0 
0 

72 766 
0 

1,044,226 
0 

1.116,992 

1,116,992 

1,116,992 

Utilised 
during year 

£ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

Unused 
amounts 
reversed 

Unused 
amounts 
reversed 

£ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

£ 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

Interest cost 
and/or 

discount rate 
changes 

£ 
0 
0 

94,099 
0 
0 
0 

94,099 

72,766 
21 ,332 
94,098 

Interest cost 
and/or 

discount rate 
. changes 

£ 
0 
0 

184 529 
0 
0 
0 

184,529 

465,469 
(280,940) 

184,529 

At31 March 
2015 

£ 
0 
0 

7605 248 
0 

1 536 521 
0 

9,141,769 

6,242,512 
2,899,257 
9,141,769 

At 31 March 
2014 

£ 
0 
0 

6057 989 
0 

1 336 726 
0 

7,394,715 

6,042,717 
1,351,998 
7,394,715 

The Councils provisions include a claims management provision and a provision in respect of the closure of the Landfill Site. 

The Council has reviewed the capping, gas extraction and infrastructure costs and discounted these accordingly which has 
resulted in a valuation of £7,605,248 (2013114 £6,057,989). 

A provision of £1,536,521 (2013/14 £1,336,726) has been made In respect of public liability, employer's liability and other 
claims/legal cases notified but not processed. Adequate insurance arrangements are In place covering the Council's activities as 
recommended by the Council's Insurance Brokers. The r~Jated Insurance premiums paid are accounted for In the financial 
statements. At 31 March 2015 the total liability for legal cases notified but not processed amounted to an estimated maximum 
liablflty of £2,956,394. 
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18 Financlallnstruments 

The Council has no material exposure to any of the risk types identified below in 'ts dealings 
with Financial Instruments. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit 
exposures to the Council's customers. Customers are assessed, taking into account their 
financial position, past experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in 
accordance with internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by the Council. The 
provision for bad and doubtful debts reflects the Council's assessment of the risk of non­
payment by trade debtors and, as such, there is no further additional estimated exposure to 
default and inability to collect. 

Trade debtors, inclusive of VAT, can be analysed by age as follows· 

£ 
Less than three months £2,042,328 
Three months to one year £735,445 
More than one year £586,491 

£3,364,264 

There is no historical experience of default in relation to deposits with banks and other 
financial institutions. Therefore there is no estimated exposure to risk of defautt. 

Liquidity Risk 

As the Council has ready access to borrowings from the Department of Finance and 
Personnel's Consolidated Fund, there is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise 
finance to meet its commitments under Financial Instruments. The maturity analysis of 
financial liabilities is included in notes 15 and 16. All trade and other payables are due for 
payment within one year. 

Market Risk 
Interest rate risk 

The Council is not exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to 
interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments which 
are at fixed rates for the life of the loans. Rates on investments 
are subject to market movements. 

Foreign exchange risk 

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in forJ!ign currencies and thus 
has no material exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates. 

Fair Value of Soft Loans and Government Loans 

The Council is in receipt of loans from the Department of Finance and Personnel that differ 
from the prevailing market rates. The fair value of these loans is £28,967,378, analysed as 
follows. 

£ 
Government Loans 28 967 378 
Total 28 967 378 

The Council has made no loans to voluntary organisations and other external bodies 
at less than market rates (soft loans). 

Page66 



Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

19 Retirement Benefits 

19a Participation In the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund. 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Council offers retirement benefits. 
Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments that 
need to be disclosed at the time that employees eam their future entitlement. 

The Council participates in the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland 
Local Government Officers' Superannuation Committee. This is a funded scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay 
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension's liabilities with investment assets. 

19b Transactions relating to retirement benefits • Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Charges: 

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Cost of Services on Continuing Operations when they are earned by 
employees. rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. 

However, the charge the Council is required to make aga·nst district rates is based on the cash payable in the year, and the real cost 
of retirement benefits is reversed out in the ad;ustments between accounting bas's & funding basis under regulations line. in the 
Movement on Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and the adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves 
Statement during the year. 

Nota 2014/15 2013/14 
£ £ 

Net cost of services: 
Current service cost 1<1 <196 000 1<1 498 000 
Past service cost/(gain) 837 000 104 000 

Galns and losses on settlements or curtailments {1 738 000 0 
Net operating expenditure: 

Net Interest on net defined benefit Llabi~tv /asset) 3 621 000 5 095 000 

Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 17,216,000 19,697,000 

Movement In Reserves Statement: 

Reversal or net charges made for retirement benefits in 
accordance with lAS 19 and the Code (17,216,0001 (19,697,000 
Actual amount charged against the general fund 
balance for pensions In the year: 

Employers' contributions payable to scheme 13,248,000 12,326,000 

Net charge to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (3,968,000) (7,371,000 

The service cost figures include an allowance for administration expenses of £180,000. 

In addition to the recognised gains and losses included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, actuarial losses or 
£13,324,000 (£35,504,000 gain in 2013114) were included in other comprehensive income end expenditure in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income 
and expenditure is a loss of £45,632,000. 

As part of the Leisure Tnansformation Programme 285 individuals transferred to the leisure operator Greenwich Leisure Limited on 1 
January 2015. 



Remeasurements recognised In Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Note 2014115 2013114 
Liability galnsf(losses) due to change In assumptions (50,316,000) 31,926,000 

Liability experience gainsf(losses) arising in the year 2,484,000 (9,527,000) 

Actuarial gainsf(losses) on plan assets 34,508,000 13,105,000 

Other· (if applicable) 

Total galns/(losses) recognised In Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

(13,324,000) 35 504,000 

.19c Aaseta and liabilities In relation to retirement benenta 

Reconclllatlon of present value of the scheme liabilities: 

Note 2014115 2013/14 
£ £ 

Balance as at 1 April 490,187,000 485.736.000 
Current service cost 14 496 000 14 498 000 
Interest cost 20 678 000 21653 000 
Contributions bv members 3 907000 3 708 000 
Remeasurement (gains) and losses: 
· Actuarial gains/losses arisng on liabilities from 
I experience (2484 000 9 527 000 
• Actuarial gains/losses arising from demograph•c 
chanaes 0 (19 465 000) 
- Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in 
financial assumotions 50 316 000 (12 461 000) 
• Other (If aDDiicablel 
Past service costsfloainsl 837 000 104 000 
Lossesflaains)_on curtailments 0 0 
Liabilities extin!luished on settlements (16 388 000 0 
Estimated unfunded benefits oald (838 000 1834 000 
Estimated benefits o~d _1_14 132 000 {12 279 000 

Balance as at 31 March 546,579,000 490,187,000 

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme assets: 

Note 2014115 2013/14 
£ £ 

Balance as at 1 April 399,012,058 366,428,058 
Interest Income 17057 000 16 558 000 
Contributions bv members 3 907 000 3 708 000 
Contributions bv emp[ayer 12 410 000 11 492 000 
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits 838 000 834 000 
Remeasurement galn/(lossl 34 508000 13 105 000 
Assets distributed on settlements (14 650 COOl 0 
Unfunded benefits peld 1838 000) 1834 000 
Benefits oaid 114 132 OOOl (_12.279000 

Balance as at 31 March 438,112,058 399,012,058 

Belfast City Council employs a building block approach in determining the rate of return on Fund assets. Historical marl<ets are 
studied and assets with higher volatility are assumed to generate higher returns consistent with widely accepted capital marl<et 
principles. The assumed rate of return on each asaet class Is calculated and the overen expected rate of return on assets is derived 
by aggregating the expected return for each asset class over the actual asset allocation for the Fund at 31 March 2015. 

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was a gain of £51,565,000 (2013/14 gain or £29,663,000). 



Fair Value of Plan Assets 

31103/2015 31103/2014 
£ £ 

Eauitv investments 319821802 296 088 947 
Government Bonds 24 972 387 23 541711 
Coraorste Bonds 28477 284 24 339 736 
Procertv 55 202 120 44 689 350 
Cash 8 762 241 10 374 314 
Other 876 224 0 

438112 058 399 012 058 

The Council's share of the Net Pension Liability (Included In the Balance Sheet): 

31/03/2015 31/03/2014 
£ £ 

Fair Value of Employer Assets 438 112 058 399 012 058 

Present value of funded defined benefit oblioation (533 751 000\ (477 434 000\ 

Pension asseVCiiabilitvl of Funded Scheme (95 638 942} (78 421 942} 

Present Value of unfunded defined benefit obliaation (12 828 000) !12 753 000) 

Other movement in the liabllltv Cassell (if aoolicablel 0 0 
Net assetl(llablllty) arising from the defined benefit 
obligation (108,466 942) (91174 942) 
Amount in the Bslance sheet: 
Liabilities (108 466 942) (91 174 942) 
Assets 0 0 
Nat Asseti(Lfabllltvl (108,466,942) (91,174,942) 



19d Scheme history 

Analysis of scheme assets and liabilities 

31/0312015 31/0312014 
£ £ 

Fair Value of Assets in oension scheme 438 112 058 399 012 058 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obliaation 1546 579 000) (490 187 000) 

Surplusl(deficit) in the Scheme (108 466 942) (91,174,942) 

Amount recognised In Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure: 
31/03/2015 31/03/2014 

£ £ 

Actuarial galnsl(lossesl 113 324,000 35 504 000 
Expected Retum on Plan Assets 0 0 
lncreasel(decraase) in irre<:oVerable surplus from 
memb~t~Ship fall and other factors 0 0 
Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income and ExPenditure (13 324 0001 35 504 000 

Cumulative actuarisl gains and losses (45 632,000) (32,308,000) 

34 508 000 
2484 000 

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. The total liability of 
£108,466,942 has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in a reduction in 
net worth or 25.22% 

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the CounCil rema'ns healthy. The deficit on 
the Northem Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining 
working life of employees, assessed by the scheme actuary 

Analysis of projected amount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year to 31 
March 2016 

31/0312016 31/0312016 
£ "A. 

Proiected current cost 15 452 000 82.6% 

Net Interest on the net defmed benefit liabi'ity (asset) 3 260 000 17.4% 
Past service cost 0 0.0% 

Gains and losses on settlements or curtailments 0 0.0% 
18 712 000 100.0% 

The total contributions expected to be made to the Northam Ireland Local Govemment Officers' Pension Fund by the council in the 
year to 31 March 2016 is £13,264,000 
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History ofexperlence gains and losses 

The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve 2014/15 can be analysed into the following categories, 
measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31 March 2015 

31/03/2015 31/03/2014 
% % 

Experience gains and (losses) on Assets 7.9% 
Experience gains and (losses) on Liabilities ·0.5% 

19e Basis for estimating assets and liabilities 

3.3% 

1.9% 

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be 
payable in the future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Council's Fund liabilities have 
been assessed by AON Hewitt, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Council Fund being based on data pertaining to 
the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2015. 

Mortality assumptions: 

Longevity at 65 current pensioners. 
Men 

Women 

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners: 
Men 

Women 

Inflation/Pension Increase Rate 
Salary Increase Rate 
Discount Rate 

Take-up of option to convert annual pension Into retirement lump sum: 
Service to April 2009 
Service post April 2009 
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2014/15 2013/14 

22.2 years 22.1 years 
24.7 years 24.6 years 

24.4 years 24.3 years 
27 years 26.9 years 

1.60% 2.40% 
3.30% 3.90% 
3.20% 4.30% 

75% 75% 
75% 75% 



19f Pension Assumptions Sensitivity Analysts 

The pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are sensitive to the assumpt:ons used. 

The approximate ·mpact of changing key assumpt"ons on the present value of the funded defined benefit obligation as at31 March 
2015 and the projected service cost for the year ending 31 March 2016 is set out below. 

In each case, only the assumption noted below is altered; all other assumptions remain the same and are summarised in the 
disclosure above. 

Funded Pension Scheme Benefits 

Discount Rate Assumption 

Adjustment to discount rete +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a. 
Present value of th'e total obligation 523,886,000 543,801,000 
% change in the present value of the total obligation -1.80% 1.90% 
Projected service cost 14,962,000 15,955,000 
Approximate % change in projected service cost -3.20% 3.30% 

Rate of General Increase In Salaries 

Adjustment to salary increase rate +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a. 
Present value or the total obligation 537,187,000 530,356,000 
% change in the present value of the total obligation 060% -0.60% 
Projected service cost 15,452 000 15,452,000 
Approximate % change in projected service cost 0% 0% 

Rate of Increase to Pensions In Payment and Deferred Pension Assumption 

Adjustment to pension increase rete +0.1% p.a. -0.1% p.a. 
Present value of the total obligation 540,906,000 526,695,000 
% change in the present value of the total obligation 1.30% -1.30% 
Projected service cost 15,955,000 14,962,000 
Approximate % change in projected service cost 3.30o/o -3.20% 

Post Retirement Mortality Assumption 

Adjustment to the mortality age rating assumption • -1 Year +1 Year 
Present value of the total obligation 548,138,000 519,351,000 
% change In the present value of the total obligation 2.70% -2.70% 
Projected service cost 15,980,000 14,923,000 
Aooroximate % chanae in oroiected service cost 3.40% -3.40% 

• A rating or +1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mortality pattern of the base table above for an individual that Is 
1 year older than that. 

19g Major categories of plan assets as percentage of total plan assets 

The Northam Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund's assets consist of the following categories by proportion of the total 
assets held: 

31/0312015 31/03/2014 
% % 

Eauitv investments 73.0 74.2 
Government Bonds 5.7 5.9 
Coroorate Bonds 6.5 6.1 
Prooertv 12.6 11.2 
Cash 2.0 2.6 
Other 0.2 0.0 

100.0 100.0 



Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
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20 Donated Assets Account 

Note 2014/15 2013114 
£ £ 

Qpenln!l balance 410000 0 
Add: new donated assets rvceived condlt on of use not met) 0 410000 
Less· amounts released to the Olstnct Fund · Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Account (conditions metl 0 0 

410 000 410 000 

Analyele of Donated ASiets Account 
The balance of the Donated Assets Account represents donaUons rvceived that have yet to be rvcogntsed as Income, as they 
have condHions attaclled to them. whicll WiJ require the donated assets to be returned. If conditions are not met The balances at 
the yaar end are as follows: 

Note 2014115 2013114 
£ £ 

Donated As1ets Aecount 
Bla Screen TV at City Hall 400000 400000 
Animal We~are Van 10000 10000 

410 DOD 410 DOD 

21 Capital Grants Received In Advance 

Note 2014/15 2013114 
£ £ 

Qpenina balance 82496 688 727 

Add: new eapltal grants received In advance (condition of use not met) 0 75,349 

Less: amounts released to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (60.689) (681,580 
21 827 82 498 

Analysis of Capital Grana R~tteipts In Advance aalanee 
The balance of Capital Grants Reeelpts In Advance represents grants received that have yat to be recogn sed as Income. as they 
have conditions attaclled to them, which will require the grant to be repaid. If conditions are not met The ba"ances at the year end 
are as follows: 

Note 2014/15 2013114 
£ £ 

Capital Grants Receipts In Advance 
Dunvllle Park Regeneration ·OSD BRO 0 
Wooclvale Park Regeneration · DSD BRO 0 
Ardoyne Pltcll and MHC!l - DSD 7,151 
Trooleal Ravine Refurbishment- Heritaae Lol!l!fV Fund 0 
Baltvslllan Plev Parle BRO 8679 
Whlterock Communllv Garden Afotments 21827 66670 

21 827 82 500 

22 Contingencies 

The arc21 Joint Comm tte has, wflh the approva1 of their Participant Councils. entered Into a Contingent LlabiJty Undertaking with 
the bidding consortium In the procunsment lor the Resident al Waste Tnsatment Project and Be~ast City Council has agreed tts 
share of the contingent Jlab<lty. Payments made, If any. In accordance wilh this undertaking will be funded by the Participant 
Councils. No further lnfonna~on on this agreement cen be disclosed due to the commercial sensitivity of the procurement 
process. 

The NOT1hem Ireland Environment Agency (N EA) Wll be nsvlewfng the adequacy of the Counclrs financial provision for landfill 
capping and eften:are costs In line with Its paper • Financial Provision for Waste Management Activltfes In Nl" As a 
consequence, a contingent liablrty of £1,100 000 has been recognised due ta the uncertainty as to whether NIEA will request the 
extension of the period for whlcll lancffill closure costs should be provided from twenty-five to sixty yaars. 

23 Events after the Balance Sheet Date 

The purchase of Clarendon Hause for Council omce accommodallon was approved by Council prior to 31 March 2015 with final 
completion of the purcllase on 27 May 2015 for an amount of £3 .5m plus relevant taxes. This Is deemed a non-adjusting pasl 
balance sheet event and as sucll no accrual for ttJ;s amount has been recognised In the financial stalements. 
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24a - Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit 
on the Provision of Services 

Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services for non cash movements 

Depreciation 
Impairment & downward revaluations (&non-sale 
derecognitions) 

(lncrease)/Decrease in Stock 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Debtors 
Increase/( decrease) in impairment provision for bad 
debts 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Creditors 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Interest Creditors 
Payments to NILGOSC 
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 
AIC/WIP written off to Net Cost of Services 
Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions 
Movement in value of investment properties 

Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on 
the provision of services that are investing and financing 
activities 

Purchase of short-term (not considered to be cash 
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes 
investments in associates, joint ventures and 
subsidiaries) 

Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be cash 
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes 
investments in associates, joint ventures and 
subsidiaries) 
Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property 
and intangible assets 

Capital grants included in "Taxation & non-specific grant 
income" 
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Notes 

20 

2014/15 
£ 

10,144,044 

(5,996,173) 
20,354 

(6,735,835) 

(328,283) 
8,642,966 

0 
3,968,000 
2,733,036 

0 
(3,068, 112) 

0 

0 

9,379,998 

0 

0 

(2,748,600) 

(13,040,392) 

{15,788,992) 

2013/14 
£ 

9,996,877 

6,795,543 
(5,941) 

4,784,901 

(291 ,091) 
(2, 101 ,496) 

0 
7,371,000 

24,873 
0 

(2, 1 04,436) 

0 

0 

24,470,230 

0 

0 

(30,983) 

(5,332,751) 

(5,363,734) 
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24b Cash and Cash Equivalents 

24c 

24d 

For the purposes of the cash now statement, cash and cash equivalents nclude cash on hand and In bank and short term deposits and 
Investments (considered to be cash equivalents), net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 
period as shown In the statement of cash nows can be reconciled to the related Items In the Balance Sheet as follows 

cash and Bank balances 

Short Term Investments (considered to be Cash Equivalents) 

Short Term Deposits (considered to be Cash Equivalents) 

Bank Overdraft 

31/0312015 
£ 

57,946,169 

(245,356) 

30,000,000 

(42,023,555) 

45,6771257 

The Council bank accounts are pooled resuiting n an overall positive bank balance which does not incur overdraft charges. 

Cash Flow Statement-Operating Activities 

The cash flows frcm operating activities include: 

Interest received 

Interest pa[d 

Cash flows from Investing Activities 

Purchase of PP&E, Investment property and lntang ble assets 

Purchase of Short Term Investments (not cons <lened to be cash equivalents) 
Purchase of Long Term Investments 
Other Payments for lnvest1ng Activities 

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, Investment property and Intangible assets 

Proceeds from Short Term Investments (not considered to be cash equivalents) 

Proceeds from Long Term Investments 

Capital Grants and Contributions Received 

Other Receipts from Investing Activities 

Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 

2014115 
£ 

182;529 

0 

2014115 
£ 

22.443,956 

0 
0 

1,633,687 

(2,748,600) 

0 

0 

(13,040,392) 

0 

8;288,651 

2014/15 
£ 

31/0312014 
£ 

55 363,622 

{86,230) 

28 500,000 

(37,833,021) 

45;9441371 

2013/14 
£ 

183,027 

0 

2013114 
£ 

10,341,484 

0 
0 

2,018,445 

(30,983) 

0 

0 

(5,332.751) 

0 

2013/14 
£ 

24e Cash flows from Financing Activities 

Cash Receipts from Short and Long Term Borrowing 

Other Receipts from Flnanc,ng Activities 

Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to a finance 
lease and on-Balance Sheet PFI contracts 

Repayment of Short and Long Term Borrowing 

Other payments for Financing Activities 

Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 

0 
0 

0 

(779,174) 

0 

(7791174) 

0 

0 

0 

(3,751 ,089) 

0 

p.7s110B9! 
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25a Analysis of Movement on Reserves- Current Year 
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25b Analysis of Movement on Reserves ·Comparative Year 
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26a Capital Receipts Reserve 

These are capital receipts which have originated primarily from the sale of assets 
which have not yet been used to finance capital expenditure. 

The Capital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales 
and other monies defined by statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain/loss 
on disposal and posted out via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital 
Receipts Reserve. The reserve is written down when resources are applied to 
finance new capital expenditure or set aside to reduce an authority's capital 
financing requirement (or used for other purposes permitted by statute). 

26b Capital Grants Unapplied account 

Where a capital grant or contribution (or part thereof) has been recognised as 
income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but the 
expenditure to be financed from that grant or contribution has not been incurred at 
the Balance Sheet date, the grant or contribution shall be transferred to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Account (within the usable reserves section of the balance sheet), 
reflecting its status as a capital resource available to finance expenditure. This 
transfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

When, at a future date, the expenditure to be financed from the grant or contribution 
is incurred, the grant or contribution (or part thereof) shall be transferred from the 
Capital Grants Unapplied Account to the Capital Adjustment Account, reflecting the 
application of capital resources to finance expenditure. This transfer is also reported 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement or in the notes to the accounts. 
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26c Capital Fund 

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI) 1972, 
however this section of the act was repealed under the Local Government Finance 
Act (Northern Ireland) 2011. The Belfast Investment Fund has been created to give 
a clear demonstration of the Council's propensity to action and wish to contribute to 
the vibrancy, prosperity, culture and attractiveness of the city. Currently the Council 
has identified 22 different projects and is in the process of evaluating them against 
revised eligibility criteria. 

26d Other Balances & Reserves (Election Reserve) 

This reserve is made up of the Election Reserve (£2,898) which is used to equalise 
(smooth) the cost of elections by building up a fund to cover the costs of future 
elections by making contributions, as and when required, to the reserve. 

26e General Fund 

This fund represents the surplus of income over expenditure. It can be used to 
supplement income and unexpected expenditure in future years. Of the 
£22,027,605, £9,781,751 relates to expenditure committed at the year end. 

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, rather than the 
amount to be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rates to cover expenditure 
in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The 
taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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26f Capital Adjustment Account 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the 
different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and 
for the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory 
provisions. 
The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as 
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postings from the Revaluation 
Reserve to convert fair value figures to an historic cost basfs . 

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and 
gains recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Council. 

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and 
Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to 
hold such gains. 

The Account now contains the Sinking Fund (£9, 173,967) for the repayment of 
maturity based loans as they fall due. 

26g Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 

The Council has no transactions that would require use of this account. 

26h Revaluation Reserve 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from 
increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The 
reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, 
or 
-disposed of and the gains are realised. 

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date 
the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated 
into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 

The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on the revaluation 
(upwards or downwards) of individual assets. All such revaluations (excluding 
impairment losses that have been debited to Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of 
Services in the) are mirrored in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. It is a 
fundamental principle of this account that it never becomes negative. If an asset was 
held at current value when derecognised, the balance held on the Revaluation 
Reserve is written off to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

261 Available-for-sate Financial Instruments Adjustment Reserve 

The Council has no transactions that would require use of this account. 

26j Pension Reserve 

Refer to note 19. 

26k Deferred Capital Receipts Account 

The Deferred Capital Receipts Account records capital advances receivable where an 
amount equal to the advance is included as a deferred capital receipt. These amounts 
are written down each year by the amount of capital debt repaid to the Council in that 
year. 
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261 Accumulated Absences Account 

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise 
arise on the General Fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned 
but not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave entitlement carried forward at the end 
of the financial year. Statutory arrangements are expected to require that the impact 
on the General Fund is neutralised by transfers to or from this Accumulated Absences 
Account 

26m Payment of invoices 

The Council's default target for paying invoices where no other terms are agreed, is 
30 days. (It is assumed that 30 days will be 30 calendar days and 10 days will be 10 
working days). 

During the year the Council paid 63,071 invoices totaling £124,619,673. 

The Council paid 55,182 invoices on 30 day terms and pa1d 39,297 invoices on 10 
day terms. 

the Council paid 7.889 invoices outside of the 30 day terms. 

The Council has arrangements to calculate the payment interval and for the year it 
was 23 days. 

The Minister at the Department of Finance and Personnel has reduced the target for 
the payment of invoices for central government departments to 10 working days. This 
target is not mandatory on local government but the Council endeavours to process 
invoices as quickly as possible and will keep its performance under review. 
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27 Significant Trading Operations 

The Council considers a trading operation exists where the service it provides is competitive i.e. the user 
always has the choice to use an alternative supplier to the Council and the Council charges the user on a 
basis other that a straightforward recharge of the Council's costs in supplying the service. The Council uses 
a variety of charging mechanisms such as quoted lump sums, fixed periodical charges or rates, or a 
combination of these. 

In deciding whether a trading operation is significant the Council takes both financial and non-financial 
criteria into account. 

Financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Council are: 

- the magnitude of each individual trading operation's turnover when compared with the Council's net 
revenue budget 

- the risk of financial loss the Council may be exposed to in providing the service to the user. 

Non-financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Council 
are: 

-the importance of each individual trading operation to demonstrating the achievement of Council targets 
and improving performance. 

- the exposure of the Council to service reputationalloss risk by providing the service 

- whether the provision of the service is likely to be of interest to the Council's key stakeholders and their 
needs. 

In applying the aforementioned criteria, the Council considers that it would consider the letting of industrial 
estates to be a significant trading operation. 

These significant trading operations form part of Note Bd to these financial statements. 
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28 Agency Services 

Transactions relating to Peace Ill are included within Corporate Management in Cost 
of SeTVices on Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

Income 
Grants Received 
Total Income 

Expenditure 
Employee Related 
Premsies Related 
Supplies & SeTVices 
Transport Related 
Support Costs 
Grants Paid 
Total Expenditure 

Net Expenditure/(lncome) 
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2014/15 2013/14 

114,576 970,386 
114,576 970,386 

75,472 191,382 
135,534 106,500 

4,720 7,010 
0 88 

29,433 38,413 
44,072 772,667 

289,231 1,116,060 

174,656 145,674 
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29 Related Party Transactions 

A Related Party Transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of whether a price is 
charged. Related Party Transaction exclude transactions with any other entity that is a related party solely because of its 
economic dependence on the Council or the Government of which it forms part. A related party is one that has the ability to 
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This 
includes cases where the related party entity and another entity are subject to common control but excludes providers of finance 
in the course of their normal business with the Council and Trade Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the Council. 
In addition where the relationship with the Council and the entity is solely that of an Agency (see note 28) these are not deemed 
to be Related Party Transactions. 

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are set out below: 

Councillors have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies. In the 2014/15 financial yearthe Council 
commissioned £2,177,264 (2013/14 £2,505,435) of works and services from Visit Belfast in which Councillors have an interest. 
The Council entered into these contracts in full compliance with the Council's standing orders and codes of conduct. 

The Council also paid grants of £788,455 (2013/14 £1,326, 183) to a number of organisations in which Councillors and Council 
officers had an interest. These grants were made with proper consideration of declaration of interests. A breakdown of the total 
works and services and grants of £2,965,719 (2013/14 £3,831,617) is shown in 29.3 below. 

During 2014/15 the Council had expenditure of £118,313 (2013/14 £98,427) to other Councils and income received of £606,352 
(2013114 £678, 109) from other Councils, of which £71,455 (note 14b) (2013/14 £158,934) was outstanding at 31 March 2015. 
These amounts mainly related to services provided. 

29.1 Payments to Community Groups 

Belfast City Council made payments to the following community groups that have CounciDors as part of their committee structure. 

Councillors 2014/15 2013/14 

East Belfast Partnership Board 2 273,123 267,187 
North Belfast Partnership Board 6 1,400 0 
South Belfast Partnership Board 7 45,000 40,000 
West Belfast Partnership Board 5 80 0 
Total 319,603 307,187 

29.2 Joint Committees 

Belfast City Couna1 made payments to the following Joint Committees: 

Councillors 2014/15 2013/14 

ARC-21 1 5,894,792 5,589,539 
5,894,792 5,589,539 

The origins of arc21 can be traced back to June 1999, when a small number of council representatives agreed that a joint 
approach was the best way to deliver an effective waste management strategy for the region. By 2000, 11 councils had joined 
together to form the Eastern Region Waste Management Group, which was eventually renamed arc21. 

At present, arc21 has successfully been awarded and is managing waste management contracts on behalf of councils with a 
value in the region of £200m. 
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29.3 Other Organisations 

Belfast City Council made payments to the following organisations that have Councillors as part of their committee structure. 

Councillors 2014/15 2013/14 
restated 

£ £ 
Association of Port Health Authorities 1 1,200 3,408 
Belfast City Centre Management Company 1 305,750 274,587 
Belfast City Marathon Co Ltd 2 47,660 42,300 
Belfast Education and Library Board 4 5,669 
Belfast Harbour Commissioners 4 48,305 137,211 
Belfast Healthy Cities Forum 1 70,292 89,586 
Belfast Hills Partnership 1 38,978 41,324 
Belfast Visitor & Convention Bureau 
incorporating Belfast Welcome Centre 5 2,177,264 2,127,724 
Cathedral Quarter Trust 16,114 
Grand Opera House Trust Ltd 36,171 
Greater Shan kill Partnership Board 4 58,187 66,067 
Groundwork Northern Ireland 381,019 
local Government Partnership (Travellers 2 250 250 
Issues) 
Lyric Theatre Education Advisory Panel 2 102,716 100,000 
National Association of Councillors 5 3,720 7,468 
N.J. local Government Association 16 100,075 93,372 

Northern Ireland Amenity Council 1 750 750 
Somme Association Ltd 2 4,903 4,266 
World Police and Fire Games Limited, Board 2 410,000 
of 

2,965,719 3,831,617 

Belfast City Council Statutory Transition Committee and Shadow Council 

The Belfast City Council Statutory Transition Committee was formed pursuant to the powers conferred by the local Government 
(Statutory Transition Committees) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2013. 

These Regulations required each new Council area to establish a Statutory Transition Committee and the Belfast City Council 
Statutory Transition Committtee was established on 2 July 2013 in accordance with this legislation, comprising 60 Councillors 
some of which are also Councillors of Belfast City Council. 

Separate financial statements have been prepared for the Belfast City Council Statutory Transition Committee for the period 
ended 31 March 2015 and audited by the Northern Ireland Audit Office. These financial statements include expenses of 
£639,787 which includes an amount of £636,546 in respect of election costs (13/14 £7,950) which have been paid by Belfast City 
Council on behalf of the Belfast City Council Statutory Transition Committtee. There were also allowances paid by Belfast City 
Council of £17,168 (13/14 £14,175) (Note 6b) on behalf of the Belfast City Council Statutory Transition Committee. 

Belfast City Council Shadow Council 

The new councils came into existence on 26th May 2014, operating in shadow form until they take over full responsibility for local 
government on 1st April2015 when the 26 existing councils cease to exist. 

Separate financial statements have been prepared for the Belfast City Council Shadow Council for the period ended 31 March 
2015 and audited by the Northern Ireland Audit Office. These financial statements include expenses of £1,077,295 which have 
been paid by Belfast City Council on behalf of the Belfast City Council Shadow Council. 

Active Belfast Limited 

As outlined in the Explanatory Foreword, Belfast City Council with Active Belfast Limited entered into an agreement with GLL for 
the provision of leisure services. These financial statements include expenses of £2,002,432 for the provision of these services 
in the year ended 31 March 2015. 

Car Loans to Council Officers 

The Council makes car loans available to employees who are designated essential car users i.e. for whom it is essential to have 
access to a car to carry out their duties. 

The total amount outstanding in respect of car loans to designated employees as at 31 March 2015 was £99,752. At 31 March 
2014 the amount outstanding was £1 01 ,885. 
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Gas Pension Fund 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 2014/15 2013/14 
£ £ 

INCOME: 
Investment Income 20,741 28,349 

EXPENDITURE 

Pensions Paid (353,789) (388,894) 
Administration Expenses (5,945) (6,492) 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year (338,993) (367,037} 

NET ASSET MOVEMENTS 
Brought forward balance at 01 .04.2014 1,654,178 2,021 ,214 
Unrealised gain at 01.04.2014 675,428 741,435 
Opening Value of Fund 2,329,606 2,762,649 

Add Contribution from City Council 150,000 
Add surplus/( deficit) for the year (338,993) (367,036) 
CHANGE IN MARKET VALUES OF INVESTMENTS 
Realised gain for year 265,335 
Unrealised gain/(loss) for year (11 ,626) (331,342) 

Closing value of fund 2,128,987 2,329,606 

FINANCED BY: 
UK Index Linked Investments 934,518 946,266 
Cash deposits and at bank 1,038,774 1,377,767 
Debtors 155,696 5,573 

2,128,987 2,329,606 
Bank Balance 0 0 
Creditors 0 0 
Closing value of fund 2,128,987 2,329,606 

Contribution from Belfast City Council outstanding at 31 March 2015£150,000 (2014 £0). 

Notes to the Gas Pensions Fund 

The Fund is maintained to provide for future pension payments to the beneficiaries, the 
objective being to maintain a fund sufficient to provide all future anticipated payments. No 
contributions are currently being paid and there are no service members accruing further 
benefits. Members' benefits are guaranteed by statute. Should the Fund's assets not be 
sufficient to provide all the benefits, the residual liability for pension payments would fall on the 
City Council. 
The current market value of the Fund at 31 March 2015 is assessed by the Councils actuaries, 
Aon Hewitt. The Fund's Financial Statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions 
and other benefits after 31 March 2015. 

At 31 March.2015 there were 45 pensioners left in the Gas Pensions Fund. 
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Triennial Actuarial Valuation as at 31 March 2011 

The date of the latest triennial actuarial valuation was 31 March 2011 and at that date the Fund 
had a past service deficit of £801,000. In order to fund this deficit the council made a 
contibution of £829,000 to the Gas Pension Fund in 2011/12. 

An estimated past service deficit of £150,000 has been assumed and the council has accrued 
for this contribution in 2014/15 

The Main Actuarial assumptions are as follows: 

Financial Assumptions: 

Rate of return on assets 

Rate of pension increases 

Demographic Assumptions: 

Mortality in retirement 

Family Details 

3.2% p.a. 

2.1% on pensions in excess of GMPs 

Standard tables PA (00) rated up 10% 

Males two years older than their partners. 75% of members 
married at 3 July 1990. 

The market value of the scheme's assets at the valuation date is £2,665,003 and the level of 
the funding expressed in percentage terms is 77%. 

The next triennial actuarial valuation is due as at 31 March 2014 and to date has not yet been 
finalised. 

A Statement of Investment Principles has been prepared and is available from the Director of 
Finance and Resources, City Hall, Belfast, BT1 5GS. 
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Accounts Authorised for the Issue Certificate 

In accordance with International Accounting Standard (lAS 1 0) this Statement of Accounts 
which contains a number of material amendments from the Accounts approved on 19 June 
2015 is at today's date hereby authorised for issue. Any material amendments will be 
explained and reported in accordance with Regulation 12 of the Local Government (Accounts 
and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2006. 

lAS 1 0 sets out 

• The period during which an entity should adjust its financial statements for events 
after the balance sheet date as being the period between the date the financial 
statements were prepared and the date of this authorisation; and 

• In the event of adjustments the disclosures that should be made. 

Material Amendments made: 

• 

• 

• 

Signed 

Date 

An accrual of £3.6m has been removed in respect of site purchase for office 
accomodation. 

Reserves of £9.1 m have been reclassified from Other Reserves to Capital 
Adjustment account in respect of the Sinking Fund . 

Surplus on the provision of services has reduced by £1.3m in respect of drawdown 
of specified reserves. · 

These amendments have no impact on the General Fund. 

~ . c~~ · 
·············~·~··y·:·::······················· 
Chief Financaal Officer 

.... t.f. (~ .~LL .f.. .................. . 
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